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ARAM Group Company P.J.S.C. and its subsidiary

Sharjah - United Arab Emirates
Directors' report

The Directors have pleasure in presenting their report and the audited consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2024.

Principal activities of the Group

The Group's principal activities are investing in financial instruments, investing and leasing of properties, and investing,
establishing and managing agricultural, industrial, and commercial projects, general trading and contracting, purchase
and sale of shares and bonds.

Financial review

The table below summarizes the results of the year 2024 and 2023.

2024 2023
AED AED
Rental income 10,193,038 11,237,129
Gain on fair value of investment properties 16,600,000 7,118,117
Net profit 16,696,855 4,393,652
Net profit ratio 163.81% 39.10%

Role of the Directors

The Directors are the Group's principal decision-making forum. The Directors have the overall responsibility for leading
and supervising the Group for delivering sustainable shareholder value through their guidance and supervision of the
Group's business. The Directors set the strategies and policies of the Group. They monitor performance of the Group's
business, guide and supervise its management.

On 20 February 2024, Mr. Ahmed Ali Mohamed Abdelaziz Alsarkal retired as the Chairman of the Group. Further, on the
said date, Mr. Khamis Mohamed Khamis Buharoon Alshamsi was appointed as the Chairman of the Group and Ms.
Najoud Abdulla Mohammad Burahima was appointed as a director.

On 13 November 2024, Mr. Mansoor Abduljabbar Abdulmohsen Ahmed Alsayegh was elected as the Vice Chairman of
the Group.

Going concern

The attached consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. While preparing the
consolidated financial statements, the management has made an assessment of the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. The management has not come across any evidence that causes it to believe that material uncertainties
related to the events or conditions existed, which may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern.

Events after year end

Subsequent to the year end, on 13 February 2025, the Board of Directors have resolved to classified non-current assets
held for sale as investment properties owing to a change in the management's intention to dispose these investment
properties (Note 27).

In the opinion of the Directors, other than above, no transaction or event of a material and unusual nature, favourable or
unfavourable has arisen in the interval between the end of the financial year and the date of this report, that is likely to
affect, substantially the result of the operations or the financial position of the Group.

Auditor

M/s. Crowe Mak, Sharjah, United Arab Emirates is willing to continue in office and a resolution to re-appoint them will be
proposed in the Annual General Meeting.
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ARAM Group Company P.J.S.C. and its subsidiary

Sharjah - United Arab Emirates
Directors' report (continued)

Statement of Directors' responsibilities

The applicable requirements require the Directors to prepare the consolidated financial statements for each financial
year which present fairly in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of the Group and its financial
performance for the year then ended.

The audited consolidated financial statements for the year under review have been prepared in conformity and in
compliance with the relevant statutory requirements and other governing laws. The Directors confirm that sufficient care
has been taken for the maintenance of proper and adequate accounting records that disclose with reasonable accuracy
at any time, the consolidated financial position of the Group and enables them to ensure that the consolidated financial
statements comply with the requirements of the applicable statute. The Directors also confirm that appropriate
accounting policies have been selected and applied consistently in order for the consolidated financial statements to
reflect fairly, the form and substance of the transactions carried out during the year under review and reasonably present
the Group's financial conditions and results of its operations.

The consolidated financial statements set out on pages 8 to 51, which have been prepared on the going concern basis
were approved by the Directors on the date of these consolidated financial statements and signed on behalf of the Group by:

0
(\J{\

Mr. Khamis Mohamed Khamis Mr. Ali Mohd Zaid Ali Musmar
Buharoon Alshamsi
Chairman Chief Executive Officer

13 February 2025
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Ref:AM/B2354/FEB'2025

Independent auditor's report
To
The Shareholders
ARAM Group Company P.J.S.C. and its subsidiary
Sharjah, United Arab Emirates

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion
We have audited the consolidated financial statements of ARAM Group Company P.J.S.C. (the "Entity") and its

subsidiary (together the "Group"), Sharjah, United Arab Emirates, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2024, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of material accounting policy information and other
explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2024, and its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards as issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants' International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standards)
(IESBA Code), as applicable to audits of consolidated financial statements of public interest entities, together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to audits of the consolidated financial statements of public interest entities in the
United Arab Emirates. We have also fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and
the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

Valuation of the investment properties

We identified the valuation of investment properties as a key audit matter due to the significance of the Group's
investment properties in the context of the Group's consolidated financial statements as a whole and due to significant
judgement involved in determining the inputs used in the valuation exercise.

As at 31 December 2024, the Group's investment properties aggregated AED 153,350,000 (2023: AED 103,650,000)
which represented 90% (2023: 67%) of the Group's total assets and a gain on revaluation of investment properties
aggregating AED 16,600,000 (2023: AED 2,495,176) was recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss for
the year then ended.

The Group's investment properties are stated at fair value based on valuation carried out by an independent qualified
valuer (the "Valuer"). The valuation was dependent on certain key estimates which required significant judgement,
including yield rates, contractual lease rents and forecasted operating expenses, which are influenced by prevailing
market forces and specific characteristics such as property location and income returns of each property in the portfolio.
Details of the valuation methodologies and key inputs used in the valuation are disclosed in Note 7 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Registered with the Department of Economic Development, Sharjah (#214937) as a Branch of Local Company.
diloo aS, ] E)""S (TY£47V) 48,81 i PN ) As)Lid jlUal 3,4 dakaill dis o Ao
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Crowe

Independent auditor's report(continued)

Tothe Shareholders of ARAM Group Company P.J.S.C. and its subsidiary
Report on the Audit of Consolidated Financial Statements(continued)

How our audit addressed the key audit matters:
We have performed the following procedures in relation to the valuation of investment properties:
-We assessed the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the independent valuer;

-We reviewed the terms of engagement between valuer and the Group to determine whether the scope of the work is
adequate and there were any matters that might have affected their objectivity or may have imposed scope limitations
upon their work;

-We assessed the completeness and consistency of information provided by the Group to the valuer; and evaluated the
reasonableness of the key inputs used in the valuation on a sample basis;

-We assessed the appropriateness and reasonableness of the valuation methodologies, key assumptions and estimates
used in the valuation on a sample basis;

-We agreed the total valuation in reports of third party valuers to the amount reported in the consolidated statement of
financial position;

-We reperformed the arithmetical accuracy of the determination of net fair value gain;

-We reviewed a sample of investment properties valued by external valuers and assessed whether the valuation of the
properties was performed in accordance with the requirements of IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement; and

-We assessed the presentation and disclosures made in relation to this matter to determine if they were in accordance
with the requirements of IFRSs. Other Information The Directors are responsible for the other information. The other

information comprises the Directors' report. The other

information does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial

statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work

we have performed on the other information that we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s

report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard. Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Consolidated Financial Statements Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these
consolidated financial statements in

accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards as issued by the IASB, and their preparation in compliance with the

applicable provisions of the UAE Federal Law No. 32 of 2021 and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,

whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group's ability to

continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.
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Independent auditor's report(continued)

To the Shareholders of ARAM Group Company P.J.S.C. and its subsidiary
Report on the Audit of Consolidated Financial Statements(continued)

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to error or fraud, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud

or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

*Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's
internal control.

*Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.

*Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit

evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or,
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue
as a going concern.

*Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

*Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or
safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most

significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.
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Crowe

Independent auditor's report(continued)

Tothe Shareholders of ARAM Group Company P.J.S.C. and its subsidiary
Report on the Audit of Consolidated Financial Statements(continued)

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Further, as required by the UAE Federal Law No. 32 of 2021, we report that:
(a) We have obtained all the information we considered necessary for the purpose of our audit.

(b) The consolidated financial statements have been prepared and comply, in all material respects, with the applicable
provisions of the UAE Federal Law No. 32 of 2021.

(c) The Group maintained proper books of account.
(d) The financial information included in the Directors' report is consistent with the books of account of the Group.
(e) Investments in shares and stocks are disclosed in Notes 8 and 9 to the consolidated financial statements and

include purchases and investments made by the Group during the financial year ended 31 December 2024.

(f) Note 10to the consolidated financial statements reflects the disclosures relating to material related party
transactions and the terms under which they were conducted.

(g) Based on the information that has been made available to us, nothing has come to our attention which causes us

to believe that the Group has contravened, during the financial year ended 31 December 2024 any of the
requirements of UAE Federal Law No. 32 of 2021, and the Articles of Association, which would materially affect its
activities or its financial position as at 31 December 2024.

Crowe Mak

ij.’)_ P.0.80x: 6954

Dr. Khalid Maniar
Registered Auditor Number:24
Sharjah, United Arab Emirates
13 February 2025

SHARJAH
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ARAM Group Company P.J.S.C. and its subsidiary

Sharjah - United Arab Emirates

Consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2024

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use assets
Investment properties

Investments carried at fair value through other comprehensive

income (FVTOCI)
Total non-current assets
Current assets

Investments carried at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Due from a related party
Non-current assets held for sale
Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

Total assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity

Share capital

Statutory reserve

Voluntary reserve

Fair value reserve

Foreign currency translation reserve
Retained earnings

Total equity

LIABILITIES

Non-current liabilities
Employees' end-of-service benefits
Lease liabilities

Bank borrowings

Deferred tax liabilities

Total non-current liabilities

Current liabilities

Dividend payable

Due to a related party

Lease liabilities

Bank borrowings

Trade and other payables

Current tax liabilities

Current liabilities on discontinued operations

Total current liabilities
Total liabilities
Total equity and liabilities

Notes

oo~

14

16

2024 2023
AED AED

71,318 115,773
61,603 445,067
153,350,000 103,650,000
14,466,656 14,599,128
167,949,577 118,809,968
160,246 635,946
300,000 50,000

- 33,100,000

840,914 1,190,216
697,289 959,461
1,998,449 35,935,623
169,948,026 154,745,591
78,901,086 78,901,086
34,869,340 33,190,039
15,188,398 13,509,097
(3,274,068) (3,290,770)
(732,393) (691,710)
14,657,502 1,388,193
139,609,865 123,005,935
898,120 859,179

- 70,686
19,870,419 23,493,078
1,314,892 -
22,083,431 24,422,943
562 562
534,012 -
70,489 336,847
3,684,211 3,684,211
3,853,410 2,952,551
112,046 i

- 342,542

8,254,730 7,316,713
30,338,161 31,739,656
169,948,026 154,745,591
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ARAM Group Company P.J.S.C. and its subsidiary

Sharjah - United Arab Emirates
Consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2024 (continued)

These consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised for issue on 13 February 2025.

The consolidated financial statements set out on pages 8 to 51, which have been prepared on the going concern basis
were approved by the Directors on the date of these consolidated financial statements and signed on behalf of the Group by:

{ L
3 e —

Mr. Khamis Mohamed Khamis Mr. Ali Mohd Zaid Ali Musmar
Buharoon Alshamsi
Chairman Chief Executive Officer

The accompanying notes and policies form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
The report of the auditor is set out on pages 4 to 7.
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ARAM Group Company P.J.S.C. and its subsidiary

Sharjah - United Arab Emirates

Consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive incomefor the

year ended31 December 2024

Rental income

Other income

Repairs and maintenance expenses

General and administrative expenses

Loss on disposal of investments at FVTOCI and FVTPL
Dividend income

Loss on disposal of investment properties
Increase in fair value of investment properties
Increase in fair value of financial assets at FVTPL
Finance cost

Profit before corporate tax

Corporate tax expense
Net profit for the year

Other comprehensive income

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:

Decrease in fair value of financial assets at FVTOCI

Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:

Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations
Other comprehensive loss for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year

Basic and diluted earnings per share

The accompanying notes and policies form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

The report of the auditor is set out onpages 4 to 7.

Notes

21
22
23

INIENEN!

25

2024 2023

AED AED
10,193,038 11,237,129
412,371 280,237
(653,615) (1,276,000)
(7,048,057) (7,365,189)
(52,452) -
191,131 190,732

- (3,693,615)
16,600,000 7,118,117
593,767 272,392
(2,112,390) (2,370,151)
18,123,793 4,393,652
(1,426,938) -
16,696,855 4,393,652
(52,242) (208,350)
(40,683) (45,396)
(92,925) (253,746)
16,603,930 4,139,906
0.2116 0.0557
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ARAM Group Company P.J.S.C. and its subsidiary

Sharjah - United Arab Emirates
Consolidated statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 December 2024

Motes 2024 2023
AED AED

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit for the year before tax 18,123,793 4 393 652
Adjustments for:

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 5 45157 52,743
Depreciation of right-of-use asset 5] 174,880 274,133
Increase in fair value of investment properties. Fi (16,600,000) (2,495,176)
Loss on disposal of investment property Fi - 3,693,615

9

Change in fair value of financial assets at FVTPL (593,7T67T) (272,392)
Change in fair value of non-current assets held for sale 11 - (4,622,941)
Employees’ end-of-service benefits 17 68,848 137,755
Allowance for expected credit losses of trade receivables 23 164,329 361,988
Loss on retirement of lease liability 23 8,169 .
Finance cost 24 2,112,390 2,370,151
Loss on disposal of invesiments at FWTOC] and FWTPL 52,452 .
Dividend income (191,131) (180,732)
Operating cash flows before changes in operating assets and liabilities 3,365,120 3,702,796
Increaze in due from a related party 10 (250,000) (50,000)
Increase in due to a related party 10 534,012 .
Decrease/(increase) in trade and other receivables 12 184,973 [ 36,498)
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables 20 500,859 (112,859
Decrease in current liabilities on discontinued operations (342,542) .
Cash generated from operating activities 4,392,422 3,503,338
Employees’ end-of-service benefits paid 17 (30,906) (45,632)
Net cash generated from operating activities 4,361,516 3457707
Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment 5 {698) {6,684
Purchase of investment properties Fi - (222,400
Proceeds from sale of investment properties Fi - 28 500,000
Dividend income 191,131 180,732
Proceeds from sale of investments at FVTPL 9 1,056,475 -
Net cash generated from investing activities 1,246,908 28 461,648
Cash flows from financing activities

Payment of lease liabilities 18 (143,562) (339,704)
Repayments of bank borrowings 19 (3,622,659) (3,622 6858)
Finance cost paid 24 (2,043,876) (2,2595,2591)
Dividends paid - (26,320,069)
Net cash used in financing activities (5,810,097) (32 577,722)
MNet decrease in cash and cash equivalents (201,673) (658,367)
Cash and cash eguivalents at the beginning of the year 959 461 1,706,979
Effects of exchange rate changes on the balance of cash held (60,459) (89,151)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 13 697 289 959 461

The accompanying notes and policies form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
The report of the auditor is set out on pages 4 to 7.
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ARAM Group Company P.J.S.C. and its subsidiary

Sharjah - United Arab Emirates
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December

2024
1

21

General information

ARAM Group Company P.J.5.C., Sharjah, United Arab Emirates (the "Enfity™) is a public joint stock company
incorporated on 26 January 1977, under Emin Decree Mumber 133/76 issued on 16 November 1976. The
trading register was issued by Economic Development Department, Government of Sharjah. The shares of the
Entity are traded in the Abu Dhabi Securities Market.

The address of the registered office of the Entity is Al Khan Street, P.O. Box: 5440, Sharjah, United Arab
Emirates.

The principal activities of the Group consist of investing in financial instruments, investing and leasing of
properties, and investing, establishing and managing agricultural, industrial, and commercial projects, general
trading and confracting, purchase and sale of shares and bonds.

The management is vested with the Directors.
The Enfity confrols the following subsidiary as at 31 December 2024:

Sr. no Entities License no. Country of Activities
incorporation
1 Tarfan General Trading and 2003/328 State of General trading and
Contracting (Ebrahim Ahmed Al- Fouwait contracting, purchase and sale
Mannaei and Partners) W.L.L of shares and bonds.

{the "Subsidiary™)

The Subsidiary is a limited lability company incorporated in Kuwait. One individual owns 1% of the
Subsidiary’s share capital for and on behalf of the Entity; therefore, 100% beneficial ownership interest is with
the Entity and hence there iz no non-controlling interest.

Thesze consclidated financial statements incorporate the consolidated operating results of the trading license
no. 1233 of the Entity and license no. 20037328 of the Subsidiary, herein together referred to as the "Group".

Application of new and revised Standards

New and amended Standards that are effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied a number of amendments to IFRS Accounting Standards issued by
the International Accounting Standards Board (IA3SB) that are mandatorily effective for an accounting period
that beging on or after 1 January 2024, Their adoption has not had any material impact on the disclosures or
on the amounts reported in these consolidated financial statements.

New and revised Standards Effective for annual
periods beginning on
or after
Amendments to IAS 7 and IFRS 7 Supplier Finance Arrangements 1 January 2024
Amendments to IFRS 16: Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback 1 January 2024
Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Curmrent or Non-current 1 January 2024
IFRS Sustainability Disclosure Standards 1 January 2024

Management has adopted the new and amended IFRS standards in the current pericd and believes that these
standards do not have materal impact on these consolidated financial statements unless mentioned above.
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ARAM Group Company P.J.5.C. and its subsidiary

Sharjah - United Arab Emirates
Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December

2024

2

2.2

N

3.2

Application of new and revised Standards (continued)

New and revised Standards in issue but not yet effective

The Group has not applied the following new and revised IFRS Standards that have been issued but are not
yet effective:

New and revised Standards Effective for annual
e e - — s beginni
or after
Amendments to IFRS 10 and 1AS 28 = Sale or Contribution of azsets between an Mo effective date
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture: set
Amendments to 1AS 21 Lack of exchangeability 1 January 2025

Amendments to the Classification and Measurement of Financial Instruments - 1 January 2026

Amendments to IFRS 9 Financial Instruments and IFRS 7 Financial Instruments:
Disclosures

IFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements 1 January 2027
IFRS 19 Subsidiaries without Public Accountability: Disclosures 1 January 2027

Management anticipates that these standards will not have any significant impact on these consclidated
financial statements.

Material accounting policies

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards as
izzued by the International Accounting Standards Board.

Basis of preparation

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for
investment properties, investments at fair value through profit or loss and investments at fair value through
other comprehensive income that are measured at fair values.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and
SEMVICES.

Current/Non-current classificalion

The Group presents assets and liabilities in consolidated statement of financial position based on current/non-
current classification. An asset is current when it is:

Expected to be realised or intended to scld or consumed in normal cperating cycle or held primarily for the
purpose of trading or expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting year, or cash or cash
equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used fo settle a liability for at least twelve months after
the reporting year.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when it is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle or it is held primarily for the
purpose of trading or it is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting year, or there is no
unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting year.

The Group classifies all other liabilities as non-current.
Fair value measuremeant

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid fo transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price iz directly
observable or estimated using another valuafion technigue. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a
liability, the Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would
take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or dizclosure purposes in these consolidated financial statements is determined on such
a basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are within the scope of IFRS 2, leasing transactions
that are within the scope of IFRS 16, and measurements that have some similarties to fair value but are not
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Material accounting policies (continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)
fair value, such as net realizsable value in 1AS 2 or value in use in 1AS 36.

Im addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3
baszed on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance
of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

» Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the
Group can access at the measurement date;

» Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

» Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group comprise the financial information of the Entity and its
Subsidiary. Control is achieved when the Parent:

» has power over the investee;
* iz exposed, or has rights, to variable retumns from its involvement with the investee; and
= has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting rights of an investee, it has power over the investee
when the voting rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee
unilaterally.

The Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether or not the Group's voting
rights in an investee are sufficient to give it power, including:

» The confractual arrangement|s) with the other vote holders of the investes;
» Rights arizing from other contractual arrangements; and
» The Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed
of during the year are included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
from the date the Group gains control until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of the Group.
Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Group.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies in line with the Group's accounting policies. All infragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expensas and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

Functional currency

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Emirati Dirham, which is the Group's functional
CUMENCY.

The Subsidiary's functional currency is the Kuwaiti Dinar (KWD). In the Group's consolidated financial
statermnents, all assets, liabilities and transactions of the subsidiary are translated into AED upon consclidation.

As at the reporting date, the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary are translated into AED at the closing rate
at the reporting date. Income and expenses have been translated into AED at the average rate owver the
reporting period.
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3.5 Revenue recognition

The Group eams revenue mainhy from rental income and dividend income.
To determine whether to recognise revenue, the Group follows a S5-step process:

1. ldentifying the contract with a customer.

2. ldentifying the performance obligations.

3. Determining the transaction price.

4. Allocating the transaction price to the performance obligations.

5. Recognise revenue as and when the Group satisfies a performance obligation.

Performance obligafion

Rental income
Rental income from investment properties is recognised as revenue on a straight-line basis over the term of
the contract.

Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss at a point of ime on the date that
the Group's right to receive payment iz established.

3.6 Leases

The Group leases offices. Rental contracts are typically made for fixed pericd of 6 years but may have
extension oplicns. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basiz and contain a wide range of different
terms and conditionz. The lease agreements do not impose any covenants, but leased assets may not be
used as security for borrowing purposes.

The Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease, at inception of a confract. A contract is, or
contains, a leaze if it conwveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a pericd of time in exchange
for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset the
Group assess whether:

+ the contract involves the use of an identified asset = this may be specified explicitly or implicitly, and should
be physically distinct or represents substantially all of the capacity of a physically distinct asset. If the
supplier has a substantive substituticn right, then the asset is not identified;

« it has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from the use of the asset throughout the
period of use; and

+ it has the right to direct the use of the asset.

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability at the date at which the leased
asset is available for use by the Group. Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance cost.
The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant pericdic rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each period. The right-of-use asset iz depreciated over the
shorter of the asset's useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted by using the rate implicit in the lease. If this rate cannct be readily
determined, the Group’s incremental borrowing rate can be used.

Lease liabilities include the net present value of the following lease payments:

+ fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentive receivables

» variable leage payment that are based on an index or a rate

= amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees

= the exercise price of a purchase option if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise that option, and

= payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising that option.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be
determined, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the lessee would have to pay
to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value in a similar economic envircnment with
similar terms and conditions.
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Material accounting policies (continued)

Leases (continued)

The lease liability is subsequently measured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the leasze
liability {using the effective interest method) and by reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments
made.

The Group re-measures the lease liability (and makes a comesponding adjustment to the related right-of-use
asset) whenever:

=« the lease term has changed or there iz a change in the assessment of exercize of a purchase option, in
which case the lease liability is re-measured by discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate.

= the lease payments change due to changes in an index or rate or a change in expected payment under a
guaranteed residual value, in which cases the lease liability is re-measured by discounting the revised
lease payments using the initial discount rate (unless the lease payments change is due to a change in a
floating interest rate, in which case a revised discount rate is used).

» a lease contract is modified and the lease modification is not accounted for as a separate lease, in which
case the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments using a revised discount
rate.

The Group did not make any such adjustments during the year.
The lease liability is presented as a separate line in the consolidated statement of financial position.
Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:
= the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability
= any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received
= any initial direct costs, and
= restoration costs.
They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Whenever the Group incurs an obligation for costs to dismantle and remove a leased asset, restore the site
on which it is located or restore the underlying asset to the condition required by the terms and conditions of
the lease, a provision is recognised and measured under IAS 37. The costs are included in the related right-
of-use asset, unless those costs are incurred to produce inventories.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated using straight-line method from the commencement date of the lease to
the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term.

The right-of-use assets are presented as a separate line in the consclidated statement of financial position.

The Group applies 1AS 36 to determine whether a right-of-use asset iz impaired and accounts for any
identified impairment loss as described in the Property, plant and equipment policy.

As a practical expedient, IFRS 16 permits a lessee not to separate non-lease components, and instead
account for any lease and associated non-lease components as a single arrangement. The Group has not
used this practical expedient.

Foreign currencies

As at the reporting date, the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary are translated into AED at the closing rate
at the reporting date. Income and expenses have been translated into AED at the average rate over the
reporting period. Exchange differences on the Group's net investment in the subsidiary are charged or
credited to other comprehensive income and recognised in the currency translation reserve in eguity. On
disposal of a foreign operation, the related cumulative translation differences recognised in equity are
reclassified to profit or loss and are recognised as part of the gain or loss on disposal.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements of the Group, transactions in currencies other than the
Group's functional currency (foreign currencies) are recognized at the rates of exchange prevailing at the
dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign
curmrencies are refranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that
are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value
was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
not retranslated.
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Material accounting policies (continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acguisition, construction or production of gualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use
or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the pericd in which they are incurred.

Employee benefits
End of service benefits

Provision iz made for the full amount of end of service benefitz due fo non-U.AE. national employees in
accordance with the applicable Labour Law and is based on current remuneration and their pericd of service
at the end of the reporting vear.

Short-term and other long-term employee benefits

A liability is recognised for benefitz accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave and
sick leave in the period the related service is rendered at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to
be paid in exchange for that service.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if any.
Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income when incurred.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost or valuation of assets (other than freehold land and
properties under construction) less their residual values over their useful lives, using the straight-line method.
The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon dispozal or when no future economic benefits
are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arizing on the disposal or
retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carmrying amount of the asset and is recognized in profit or loss.

The following useful lives are used in the calculation of depreciation:

Useaful lives
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 4 years
Motor vehicles 5 years
Other facilities 5 years

Investment properties

Investment properfies are properties held to eam rentals andf/or for capital appreciation (including property
under construction for such purposes).

Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are measured at fair value. All of the Group’s property interests held under
operating leases to eamn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are accounted for as investment
properties and are measured using the fair value model. Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair
value of investment properties are included in profit or loss in the pericd in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognized uvpon dispozal or when the investment property is permanently
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are expected from the disposal. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
camrying amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the perod in which the property is derecognized.
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Material accounting policies (continued)

Impairment of tangible assets

At the end of each reporting perod, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment lozs (if any). When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the
Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a
reazonable and congistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assetz are alzo allocated to
individual cagh-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest company of cash-generating
units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are dizcounted to their present value using a pre-tax dizcount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which
the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) iz estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) iz reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued
amount, in which case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
iz increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment logs is recognised immediately
in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carfed at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the
impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present cbligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, it is probable that the Group will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting pericd, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the
obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its
camrying amount iz the present value of thoze cash flows (when the effect of the time value of money is
material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a
third party, a receivable iz recognized as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received
and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instruments.

Financial aszets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets
and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assetz or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

All regular way purchases or zales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Reqgular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the time frame established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

All recognised financial assets are measured subsequently in their entirety at either amortized cost or fair
value, depending on the classification of the financial assets.

Classification of financial assets

Financial instruments that meet the following conditions are measured subsequently at amortized cost:
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Financial assets (continued)

« the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows; and

» the confractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount cutstanding.

Financial instruments that meet the following conditions are measured subsequently at fair value through
other comprehensive income (FYTOCI):

= the financial asset iz held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets; and

= the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount cutstanding.

By default, all other financial assets are measured subsequently at fair value through profit or loss (FWTPL).
(i} Equity instruments designated as at FWVTOCI

On initial recognition, the Group may make an irrevocable election (on an instrument-by-instrument basis) to
designate investments in equity instruments as at FVTOCI. Designation at FVTOCIH is not permitted if the
equity investment is held for trading or if it is contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business
combinaticn.

A financial asset iz held for trading if:
+ it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling it in the near term; or

= on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Group manages
together and has evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

+ it is a dervative (except for a derivative that is a financial guarantee confract or a designated and effective
hedging instrument).

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are initially measured at fair value plug transaction costs.
Subsequently, they are measured at fair value with gains and losses arising fromm changes in fair value
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve. The
cumulative gain or loss will not be reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of the equity investments, instead,
they will be transferred to retained eamings.

{ii} Financial assets at FWTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI (see (i) to (i)
above) are measured at FWTPL. Specifically:

= investments in equity instruments are classified as at FWVTPL, unless the Group designates an equity
investment that is neither held for frading nor a contingent consideration arising from a business
combination as at FVTOCI on initial recognition (see (iii) above);

= debt insfruments that do not meet the amortized cost criteria or the FYTOCI criteria (see (i) and (ii) above)
are classified as at FVTPL. In addition, debt instruments that meet either the amortised cost criteria or the
FWTOCI criteria may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if such designation eliminates or
significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency (so called "accounting mismatch') that
would arise from measuring assets or liabilities or recognising the gainz and losses on them on different
bases. The Group has not designated any debt instruments as at FVWTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting year, with any fair value
gains or losses recognised in profit or loss to the extent they are not part of a designated hedging relationship
(see hedge accounting policy). The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss includes any dividend or
interest earned on the financial asset and is included in the 'other gains and losses' ling itemn.

Impairment of financial assefs

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses on investments that are measured at
FWTOCI and trade receivables. The amount of expected credit losses is updated at each reporting date to
reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition of the respective financial instrument.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for investments that are measured at FVTOCI and trade
receivables. The expected credit losses on these financial assets are estimated using a provision matrix
based on the Group's historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors,
general economic conditions and an assessment of both the current as well as the forecast direction of
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Material accounting policies (continued)

Financial assets (continued)
conditions at the reporting date, including time value of money where appropriate.

For all other financial instruments, the Group recognises lifetime ECL when there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition. Howewver, if the credit rizsk on the financial instrument has not
increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group measures the loss allowance for that financial
instrument at an amount equal to 12-month ECL. The asszessment of whether lifetime ECL should be
recognised iz based on significant increases in the likelihood or rigk of a default occurring since initial
recognition instead of on evidence of a financial asset being credit-impaired at the reporting date.

Lifetime ECL represents the expected credit losses that will result from all possible default events over the
expected life of a financial instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is
expected to result from default events on a financial instrument that are possible within 12 months after the
reporting date.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalentz comprize cash on hand and demand deposits and other shortterm highly liguid
investments that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.

Receivables

Receivables were non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. Receivables (including trade and other receivables) were measured at amortized cost using
the effective interest method, less any impairment.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another party. If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
and continues to control the transferred asset, the Group recognizes its retained interest in the asset and an
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralized borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset's camying amount and
the sum of the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity was recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in itz entirety (e.g. when the Group retains an opflion to
repurchase part of a transferred asset), the Group allocates the previous camrying amount of the financial
asset between the part it continues to recognise under continuing involvement, and the part it no longer
recognises on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts on the date of the transfer. The difference
between the carrying amount allocated to the part that was no longer recognised and the sum of the
consideration received for the part no longer recognised and any cumulative gain or loss allocated to it that
had been recognised in other comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss. A cumulative gain or loss
that had been recognized in other comprehensive income was allocated between the part that continues to be
recognised and the part that was no longer recognised on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equify

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an eguity instrument.
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Material accounting policies (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued)

Equity instrumenis

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an Entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are recognised at the proceeds received,
net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Group's own eguity instruments is recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, zale, issue or cancellation of the Group's own equity
instruments.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are measured subseguently at amortised cost using the effective interest method or at
FWTPL.

However, financial liabilities that arise when a transfer of a financial asset does not qualify for derecognition or
when the continuing involvement approach applies, and financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group,
are measured in accordance with the specific accounting policies set out balow.

Financial liabilities measured subsequently at amortised cost

Financial liakiliies that are not (i) contingent consideration of an acquirer in a business combination, (i) held-
for-trading, or (i) designated as at FVTPL, are measured subsequently at amortized cost using the effective
interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of
allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate iz the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral
part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life
of the financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to the amortised cost of a financial liability.

Derecognition of financial fabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Group's obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the congsideration paid and payable is recognized in profit or loss.

When the Group exchanges with the existing lender one debt instrument into ancther one with the
substantially different terms, such exchange is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial
liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. Similarly, the Group accounts for substantial
modification of terms of an existing liability or part of it as an extinguizhment of the onginal financial liability
and the recognition of a new liability. It iz assumed that the terms are substantially different if the discounted
present value of the cash flows under the new terms, including any fees paid net of any fees received and
discounted using the orginal effective rate is at least 10 per cent different from the discounted present value
of the remaining cash flows of the criginal financial liability. If the modification is not substantial, the difference
between: (1) the carmying amount of the liability before the modification; and (2) the present value of the cash
flows after modification should be recognised in profit or loss as the modification gain or loss within other
gaing and losses.

Oiffsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amcunt reported in the consolidated statement of
financial position, when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Mon-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations

The Group classifies non-current assets and disposal groups as held for sale if their carrying amounts will be
recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. Non-current assets and
disposal groups classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value
less costs to sell. Costs to sell are the incremental costs directly attributable to the dizposal of an asset
(disposal group), excluding finance costz and income tax expense.
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Material accounting policies (continued)

MNon-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations (continued)

The criteria for held for sale clagsification is regarded as met only when the =ale is highly probable, and the
asset or disposal group is available for immediate sale in its present condition. Actions required to complete
the sale should indicate that it iz unlikely that significant changes to the sale will be made or that the decision
to sell will be withdrawn. Management must be committed to the plan to sell the asset and the sale expected
to be completed within one year from the date of the classification.

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assefs are not depreciated or amortised once clazsified as held
for zale.

Asszets and liabilities classified as held for sale are presented separately as cumrent items in the statement of
financial position.

Discontinued operations are excluded from the results of confinuing operations and are presented as a single
amount as profit or loss after tax from discontinued operations in the statement of profit or loss.

Taxation

Corporate tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current tax expense (or benefit) is the tax payable
(or meceivable) on the current year's taxable income calculated using tax rates (and laws) enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period in each jursdiction, adjusted for changes in deferred
tax assets and liabilities. Current tax expense is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
except when the tax relates to items directly recognised in other comprehensive income or equity, in which
case it iz recognised in other comprehensive income or equity respectively. Tax provisions are recognised for
uncertain tax positions when it is probable that there will be a future ocutflow of funds to a tax authority,
measurad at the best estimate of the amount expected to become payable.

Deferred tax is recognised using the liability method on temporary differences arising between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabiliies in the consoclidated financial statements and their tax bases. Deferred tax is
determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted as at the reporting
date and are expected to apply when the related deferred tax azset is realized or the deferred tax liability is
settled. Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except for goodwill and
temporary differences arising from the initial recognition of assets and liabiliies in transzactions that do not
affect taxable or accounting profit. Deferred tax assets are only recognised for temporary differences to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary
differences can be ufilised.

Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to the extent that it is no longer probable
that the related tax benefit will be realised. Deferred tax relating to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or equity are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabiliies, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the group
intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Mo deferred tax liability has been recognized on the revaluation surplus with respect to their investment
property existing as of the transition date.

Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the application of the accounting policies, which are described in note 3 to these consoclidated financial
statements, management iz required to make judgements, estimates and assumpticns about the camrying
amounts of assetz and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other socurces. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered fo be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affectz only that period,
or in the period of the revision and future pericds if the revision affects both curmrent and future pericds. The
significant judgements and estimates made by management that have a significant rigk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabkilities within the next financial year are described below;
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Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty
Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
Judgements in deftermining the iming of satisfaction of performance obligations

In making their judgement, the Directors consider the detailed crteria for the recognition of revenue set out in
IFRS 15, and in particular, whether the Group has safisfied the performance obligation by rendering the
services to the customers. The management is satisfied that the recognition of revenue in the current year is
appropriate.

Revenuwe recognition for leases

Rental income arising from operating leases on investment properties is recognised, net of discount, in
accordance with the terms of lease contracts over the leasze term on a straight line basis, except where an
altermative basis is more representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased azset.

Business model assessment

Classification and measurement of financial assets depends on the results of the SPPI and the business
model test (please see financial azsets sections of note 3.15). The Group determines the business model at a
level that reflectz how groups of finandal assets are managed together to achieve a particular business
objective. This azsessment includes judgement reflecting all relevant evidence including how the performance
of the assets is evaluated and their performance measured, the risks that affect the performance of the assets
and how these are managed and how the managers of the asseiz are compensated. The Group monitors
financial assets measured at amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income that are
derecognised prior to their maturity to understand the reason for their disposal and whether the reasonz are
consistent with the objective of the business for which the aszset was held. Monitoring is part of the Group's
continuous assessment of whether the business model for which the remaining financial assets are held
continues to be appropriate and if it is not appropriate whether there has been a change in business model
and so a prospective change to the classification of thoze assets.

Classification of properties

Based on the management's intention at the time of acquisition of a property, it was decided to classify the
property as either held for sale or held for development or held for rental or capital appreciation. The
management changes the classification when the intention changes.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

Discounting of lease paymenis

The lease payments are discounted using the Group's incremental borrowing rate ("IBR"). The weighted
average lessee's incremental borrowing rate applied to lease liabilities recognised in the statement of financial
position at the date of initial application is 4.79%.

Subsequent to the initial application, the management has reviewed the incremental bormmowing rates and has
found the incremental borrowing rates used by the Group to be appropriate, and hence, no adjustments are
required on this account.

Management has applied judgements and estimates to determine the |IBR at the commencement of lease.

Calcuiation of loss allowance

When measuring ECL the Group uses reasonable and supportable forward looking information, which is
based on assumptions for the future movement of different economic drivers and how these drivers will affect
each other.

Loss given default is an estimate of the loss arising on default. It is based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due and those that the lender would expect to receive, taking into account cash flows
from collateral and integral credit enhancements.

Probability of default constitutes a key input in measuring ECL. Probability of default is an estimate of the
likelihood of default cver a given time horizon, the calculation of which includes historical data, assumptions
and expectations of future conditions.
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Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty
Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is depreciated over its estimated useful life, which is based on expected usage
of the asset and expected physical wear and tear which depends on operational factors. The management
has not considered any residual value as it is deemed immaterial.

Valuation of investment properties

The Group carries its investment properties at fair value, with changes in fair value being recognised in profit
or loss. Land is valued using market comparable approach. Market comparable approach references to
transactions involving properties of a similar nature, location and condition. Other investment properties are
wvalued using the direct capitalisation method which iz used to conwvert the estimate of a single year's income
expectancy info an indication of value. The key assumptions used to determine the fair value of the properties
are dizclosed in Note 7.

Valuation of financial instruments

Management uzes various valuation techniques to determine the fair value of financial instruments (where
active market quotes are not available). This involves developing estimates and assumptions consistent with
how market participants would price the instrument. Management bases its assumptions on cbservable data
as far as possible but thig is not always available. In that case, management uses the best information
available. Estimated fair values may vary from the actual prices that would be achieved in an arm's length
transaction at the reporting date.
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Propearly, plant and equipment (continuead)

The depreciation charge has been allocated im the consobdated staterment af prﬂ'ﬁt of loss and obther

CHTprehensive income a5 Tollows:

General and admnistrative expenses (MNote 23)

Leases (the Group as Lesses)

Hight-oi-iise azsers

Movement of the recognised nght-of-use assels during the year:

Cost

As at 1 January 203

Additions dunng the year

Effect of forelgn exchange rate diferencas

Az at 31 December 2023

Retirarments during the year
Effect of forelgn exchange rate diferencas

Ag at 3 December 2024

Accumulated depreciation
A8 at 1 January 2023

Charge for the year
Effect of foreign exchangs rate diferences

Ag at 31 December 2023

Charge for the year
Related to ratesments during yeer
Effect of foreign exchangs rate diferences

Asg at 31 December 2024
Carrylng amaunt

As at 31 December 2024

Ag at 31 December 2023

2024
AED

45,157

Property
AFD

745,737
410,408
{4, 408)

1,131,736

{410.408)
{2 DEE)

739,262

436,318
274,133
{3,782)

TG, 58059

174,880
(204 831)
{2 059)

G677, 639

61,603

445,067

203
AED

32,43

Total
AED

o, 137
410,404
14, 405)

1.131,736

{410,408}
{2,066)

738,262

436,318
274,133
{3,782)

TG, G5

174, 880
(201,831}
12, ey

677,639

61,603

445,067
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Leases (the Group as Lesses) [continuad)

Amounts recogrusad i profl o Inss

2024 203
AED AE[Y
Deprecistion expense on ighl-of-use assats (Mote 23) 174,880 274,133
Imterest axpense on kease liabilities (Note 24) E862 13,308
Investment properies
Land Buildings Tolal
AED AED AED
Fair value
Ag al 1 January 2023 16,680,000 144,813,098 161,603,094
Addilions - 222 400 222 40
Deaposals - (32 105 615) [42,193,615)
Incregse n far value JE0,000 2135178 2485176
Transfered 1o non-current assets held for sale {Note
1) - (28 477 059) (25477 050)
A3 gl 31 Dacember 2023 17,050,000 H& EDOD, 000 103 650,00
Increase o far value 2. 100,000 14,500,000 16,600,000
Transfer from non - current ssset hald for sale (Note
27 - 33.100,000 33 100, 0D
Mg at 31 December 2024 19,150,000 134,200,000 153,350,000

The Group's investment propertes consist of residential towers and buildings, offices, warehouses and
undeveloped parcels of land.

Imvwestment properties located at Al Qasirmea, Al Khan and A Muwedah, Sharjah with carmy@ng value of AED
T8.4 million as at 31 December 204 (20E3: investment properies koated at Al Khan and Al Muweilah,
Sharjah with canrying value of AED 431 million &nd non-current asset held for sale located at Al Qasimia with
camying wvalue of AED 24.5 millon) have a first degres rmorigage in favour of Sharjah Islamic Bank for the
bank facilities (Mofe 19).

The GTIZIIJFI has mo restrictions on the realisability of Its investment progerties and there are no contractual
obligations to purchase, comnstrect or develop imvesiment properties or for regas, maintenance of
enhancemanis, ather than those against securites for the term loan (Mate 18).

During the yesr ended 31 December 2023, the Group sold investment properties located at Al Majaz 2,
Sharjah and at Industrial Area 13, Sharjah with canmying value of AED 32,193,615 and has incurred a loss of
AED 3,693,615 on the disposal of Investrmen progerties.
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Investment properties (continued)

Investment properties are stated at far value based on & valustion carred out by independent valuers as at 31
December 2034 and 31 December 2023, The significant puis and assumptlons are provided by
Managemeant.

Land I8 valued using market comparable approach. Mamket comparable approach references 1o ransactions
Inwlwing properies of a simdar nature, location and condition.

The most significant inputs with relation to the valsation of buldings and warshouses, all of which are
unobserdable, are the estimated rental value, assumgtions about vacancy levels, and the discount rate. The
esfimated falr value increases |f the estimated renlal increases, vacancy levels dechne or if discount rate
(market yields) decline. The overall valuation |s sensitive to all three assumgtions. Management considers the
range of reasonably possible alternative sssumptions s greatest for rental values and vacancy bavels and thal
there is also an interrelabonship between thess nguts.

The fair values of the buildings and warehouses are estmated using an income approach which capitakses
the estimated remal income siream, net of projected operabng costs, using & discount rate derlved from
markel yaids implied by recent ransactions in similar propeies. When the sctual rent diffars materially from
the estmated rent, adustments have been made to the estimated rental value. The estimated rental siream
takes inbo account cumrent occupancy level, eslimates of future vacancy levels, the terms of in-place leases
and expectations for rentals from fuiure leases over the remaming economss life of the properlies.

The Directors of the Group have reviewed the assumgtion and methodology used by the independent valuer
and in thelr opinion the assumption and the methodology are reasonable &5 at the regorting date conssdenng
the current economic and real estate outlook of the UAE.

Fair value hieramchy disclosures for mvestment properties are dadosed in Mote 28,

The property rental income earmed by the Group from its investment properly, which ig leased undar operaling
lzasas on an annual bases and the repairs and maintenance expenses ncurred are as follows:

2024 HE3
AED AED
Rental income (Moba 21) 10,183,038 0,035,888

Repair and maintenance expenses [Mobe 22) (653,615) (1,276, 00d0)
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Investments carried at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVYTOCI)

2024
AED
Quoted investments 11,942,692
Unquoted investments 2,523,964
14,466,656
2024
AED
The movements of investments carried at FYTOCI are as follows:
Balance at the beginning of the year 14,599,128
Decrease in fair value during the year (52,242)
Disposal during the yvear (39.883)
Foreign exchange loss during the year - net (40,347)
14,466,656
The geographical distribution of investments carried at FVTOCI is
as follows:
In Kuwait 14,466,656

The above quoted investments are valued at the closing rate on 31 December 2024.

2023
AED

11,769,583
2,829,545

14,588,128

2023
AED

14,832,760
(208,350)

{25,291)
14,599,128

14,588,128

Fair valug hierarchy disclosures for investments carried at fair value through other comprehensive income

(FVTOCI) are disclosed in Note 29.
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Investments carried at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

2024 2023
AED AED
Quoted investments - 496,916
Unquoted investments 160,246 139,030
160,246 635,946
2024 2023
AED AED
The movements of investments carried at FVTPL are as follows:
Balance at the beginning of the year 635,946 363,794
Increase in fair value during the year 593,767 272,382
Disposals during the year (1,069,044) -
Foreign exchange loss during the year - net (423) (240)
160,246 635,946
The geographical distribution of investments carried at FVTPL is
as follows:
In United Arab Emirates - 496916
In Kuwait 160,246 139,030
160,246 635,946

Fair valug hierarchy disclogures for investments carried at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) are
disclosed in Mote 29,

Related party balances and transactions

The Group enters into transactions with companies and entities that fall within the definition of a related party
as confained in International Accounting Standard 24 Related Party Disclosures. Related parties comprise
companies and enfities under common ownership andfor common management and control, key
management personnel and shareholders. The management decides on the terms and conditions of the
transactions and services received/rendered from/to related parties as well as on other charges.

a) At the end of the reporting year, amounts due from related parties were as follows:
2024 2023

AED AED

Due from key management personnal
Receivable from Chief Executive Officer 300,000 50,000
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Related party balances and transactions (continuad)

by At the end of the reporting year, amounts due to related parties were as follows:

2024 2023
AED AED
Due to key management personnel
Remuneration and sitting fees payable to directors 534,012

o) Transaclions

Dwring the year, the Group entered into the following transactions with the related parties:

2024 2023

AED AED

Advance to Chief Executive Officer 300,000 50,000
Sale of investment property to board member (Mote 7) - 20,000,000
300,000 20,050,000

d) Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of Directors and other memberz of key management perzonnel during the year was as
follows:

2024 2023
AED AED
Salaries and other short-term benefits 1,362,770 1,879,496
End of service benefits 41,551 44 000
Directors' remuneration 500,000 400,000
Directors' sitting fee 28,012 42,000
2,332,333 2,365,496
Mon-current assets held for sale
2024 2023
AED AED
Balance at the beginning of the year 33,100,000 -
Transfer from investment properties - 28 477,059
Changes in fair value - 4 622 941
Transfer to investrment properties (Note 27) {33,100,000)

Balance at the end of the year - 33,100,000



37| Integrated Report 2024

ARAM Group Company P.J.5.C. and its subsidiary

Sharjah - United Arab Emirates

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December

2024

12 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables
Lozs allowance

Prepayments

Depaosits

VAT receivables

Other advances and receivables

Geographical details of trade receivables

Primary Geographical Markets
Within U_AE.

2024
AED

1,464,692
(1,151,823)
312,869

418,260
82,526
15,236
12,023

840914

2024
AED

1,464,692

2023
AED

1,774,082
(1,192 892)
581,090

445 316
136,315
11,093
16,402

1.180,216

2023
AED

1,774,082

The following table details the risk profile of frade receivables based on the Group's provision mafrix. As the
Group's historical credit loss experience does not show significantly different loss patterns for different
customer segments, the provision for loss allowance based on past due status is not further distinguished

between the Group's different customer base.

T'rade receivablas — Ageing analysis

31 December 2024 0-30 days 91-120 days

AED

Estimated net carrying amaount 179,602

More than 120
days
AED

67,779

Total

AED

312,869

312,869
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12 Trade and other receivables (continued)
Trade receivables — Ageing analysis
3 December 2023 0-90 days 91-120 days More than 120 Total
days
AED AED AED
Estimated net carrying amount 444 594 55,861 80,635 581,080
581.080
The following table shows the movement in lifetime ECL that has been recognised for trade and other
receivables in accordance with the simplified approach set out in IFRS 9:
Total
AED
Balance as at 1 January 2023 953,615
Allowance for expected credit losses (Note 23) 361,988
Amounts written off (122,611)
Balance as at 31 December 2023 1,192,992
Allowance for expected credit losses (Note 23) 164,329
Amounts written off (2035,498)
Balance as at 31 December 2024 1,151,823
13 Cash and cash equivalents
2024 2023
AED AED
Cash on hand 39,875 34,434
Bank balances 657 414 925,027
697,289 959,461
The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents are denominated in the following curmencies:
2024 2023
AED AED
Primary Geographical Markets
Emirati Dirham 655,104 854 585
Kuwaiti Dinar 42 185 104 876
697,289 959 461
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15

16

Cash and cash equivalents {continued)

The bank balances are also subject 1o mgairment reguirements of IFRS B, howeaver, balances wilh banks are
assessad o have low credil risk of defaull since thase banks ame highly regulated by the cenlral bank of
Urited Aralr Emirales and Kuwail None of the balances wilh banks at the end of he reparting year are past
due, and laking inlo acsount the historical defaull expenence and the curment credil ratings of the bank, the
management of the Groug have assessed hal there is no imgairment, and hence have nol recorded any oss
allowances on hase balancas,

Share capital
2024 2023
AED AED
Authorised, isswed and paid up share capilal:
78,901,086 shares of AED 1 each 78,801,086 7E,001,086

The aulhorgead, issued and Tully paid share capital of the Enlity conaisis of 78,901,066 fully paid ordinary
sharas wilh a par vales of AED 1 each.

Statutory reserve

2024 2023

AED AED
Balance al the baginning of the year 33,100,039 32,736,685
Transfer Irom relained earnings 1,679,301 453,154
Balance at the end of the year 34,869,340 33,180,030

Actording o the Arlickes of Assacialion of the Entily and the UAE Federal Law Mo, 32 of 2021, 10% ol annual
el prodils o the slallory resarve. The ransfer o slalulory reserve may be suspended, when the resere
reaches 50% of the paid-up capital. This reserve is nol available Tor distribution

Voluntary reserve

2024 2023
AED AED
Balance al the baginning of the year 13,508,097 13,055,843
Trangder [rom relained aarnings 1,679,301 453,154
Balance ai the end of the year 15,188,398 13,609,087

As required by the Group’s Arlices of Associalion, 10% of the Group's net profil for the year s nequined o be
framsfermed bo the volunlary reserse unll Sech reserve equals one hall of @e Group’s share capilal. The
regarve 5 available for distilbulion al the dscretion of he sharehalderns” ganeral assermily.
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7 Employees” end-of-service banefits

Balance & the baginning of the year
Charge lor the year

Payrmanls during the yaar

Effact of fareign exchange diferences

Balance at the end of the year

2024
AED

ESO 170
6B B4E
(30.906)
998

88,120

2023

760,401
137,755
{45,632)

6,655

E39.178

Amaunis reguired o cover end of senvice benefils al ihe consalidated statement of inansial position dale are
compuled pursuant o the apphcable Labour Law based on the employess’ accumulaled penod of service and

currenl basic rermuneration at the end of reparting year.
18 Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities recegnized and maturity analysis:

Amaiml due far ssfamen within 72 manifs

Mot lalir Ban 1 year (shown under curreat liabililies)
Amaunt due far seliement after 12 montha

Later than 1 year and nod lalar than 5 years

The moverment in egss fatiiilies & as folows:

As al the baginning of the year
Amartization of imerest axpense during the year [Nole 24)
Addiliong dufing Be year

Retirerment of laase liabililies during the year
Regpaymenl of lease liabililies during the year

Effect of foreign exchange dilerences

As at the end of the year

204

T 4589

0489

2024
AED

407,533
6,962
{200,408)
{143,562)
[36)

T 4589

2023

G336 84T

T ESE
407 533

2025
AED

337,783
13,308
410,408
{330,704)
{14,262)

407 533
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19 Bank borrowings
2024 2023
AED AED
Term loan 23,554,630 27,177,289
2024 2023
AED AED
Term loans movement during the year
Balance at the beginning of the year 27 177,289 30,795 947
Add: Amortisation of loan arrangement fee during the year 61,552 61,562
Add: Amertisation of interest expense duning the year 2,043,876 2,295 291
Less: Repayment during the year (5,728.087) {5,979,501)
Balance at the end of the year 23,554,630 27177 289
Presented in the consolidated statement of financial position as:
2024 2023
AED AED
Bank borrowings - non-current 19,870,419 23493078
Bank borrowings - current 3.684,211 3,684 211
23,554,630 27,177,289

In 2021, the Group entered into a "One-off ljarah facility” arrangement with Sharjah Islamic Bank. The facility
is repayable in equal semi-annual installments over a period of ten years plus profit rate of 6 months EIBOR +
2.5% p.a., with a floor of 4% p.a.

The facility is secured against the following securities and guarantees:

a. First degree registered mortgage over certain properties in favour of Sharjah Islamic Bank (Mote 7).

b. Assignment of fire insurance policy over ljarah properties in favour of Sharjah Islamic Bank.

c. Cheque covering the total facility amount.

d. Motarised power of attorney in favour of Sharjah Islamic Bank or its appointed agent to manage certain
properties and collect its rentals.

e. Assignment of rental cover from investment properties located at plot no. 213 in Al Soor, Sharjah, plot no.
216 in Al Majaz, Sharjah and plot no. 689/A/1 in Industrial Area 13, Sharjah. Out of said investment properties,
the investment properties located at Al Majaz, Sharjah and Industnal Area 13, Shanah have been sold.
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20 Trade and other payables
2024 2023
AED AED
Trade payables 195,143 211,381
Accrued expenses 1,463,493 819,833
Contract liabilities - rent received in advance 1,138,401 1,198,701
Tenants' security deposits 1,056,373 722 636
3,853,410 2,952 551
21 Rental income
2024 2023
AED AED
Disaggregation of revenue — over time
Rental income 10,193,038 11,237,129
2024 2023
AED AED
Primary Geographical Markets
Within U_AE. 10,193,038 11237129
22 Repairs and maintenance expenses
2024 2023
AED AED
Waste water discharge 268,775 693 467
Building repairs 242,045 443 106
Others 142,795 139427
653,615 1,276,000
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2024
23 General and administrative expenses
2024 2023
AED AED
Employee costs 2.744. 442 2,451,801
Compensation of key management personnel (Note 10d) 2,332,333 2,365,496
Legal, license and professional 653,112 764,759
Utilities 268,939 369,089
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (Note 6) 174,880 274,133
Allowance for expected credit losses of trade receivables (Note 12) 164,329 361,968
Civil defense expenses 141,272 112,771
Rent expense 130,590 43,000
General assembly expenses 80,307 203,106
Communication 66,354 89,338
Insurance 50,289 56,405
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (Note 5) 45,157 52,743
Loss on retirement of lease liabilities 8,169 -
Other general and administrative expenses 187,884 220,560
7,048,057 7,365,189
24 Finance cost
2024 2023
AED AED
Interest on bank borrowing 2,043,876 2,295,291
Amartization of loan arrangement fee 61,552 61,552
Interest expense on lease liabiliies (Note 18) 6,962 13,308
2,112,390 2,370,151
25 Basic and diluted earnings per share
2024 2023
AED AED
Basic and diluted earnings per share
Net profit for the year 16,696,855 4,393,652
Weighted average number of shares 78,901,086 78,901,086
Basic and diluted earnings per share 0.2116 0.0557

As stated in Note 27, owing to a change in the management’s intention to dispose the investment properties
{Mote T), discontinued operations are no longer required to be considered for determining basic and diluted

earnings per share.
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26 Corporate taxes relating to continuing operations

Corporate tax expense recognised in profit or loss

Current tax
In respect of the current year

Deferred tax

In respect of the current year

Adjustments to deferred tax attnbutable to changes in tax rates and
laws

The corporate tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profit as follows:

Profit before tax

Corporate tax expense calculated at 9% (2023: -%)

Effect on deferred tax balances due to the change in corporate tax
rates

Tax effect on basic tax exemption limit
Effect of different tax rates on subsidiary operating in other jurisdictions
Others

Corporate tax expense recognised in profit or loss

2024
AED

112,046

2023
AED

112,046

1,493,358
(178,466)

1,314,892

1,426,938

2024
AED

18,123,793

1,631,141
(178,466)

{33,750
8,655
(642)

2023
AED

4,393,652

1,426,938

The tax rate used for 2024 and 2023 reconciliations above is the corporate tax rate of 9% (2023: -%)
payable by corporate entities in on taxable profits under tax law in that jurisdiction.
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26 Corporate taxes relating to continuing operations {continued)
Deferred tax balances
The following is the analysis of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) presented in the consolidated statement of
financial position:
2024 2023
AED AED
Deferred tax liabilites 1,314,892 -
1,314,892 -
Above deferred tax liabilities relate to the following:
2024 2023
AED AED
Fair value gain on investment properties 1,494,000 -
Others (179,108) -
1,314,892 -
27 Discontinued operations
During the year ended 31 December 2023, the management had decided to dispose the investment
properties located at Al Qasimia, Sharjah and Al Soor, Sharjah to settle the term loan liabilities. Accordingly,
as at 31 December 2023, the investment properties and related assets amounting to AED 33,100,000 (Mote
11) and liabilities amounting to AED 342542 were classified as a disposal group and related income
amounting to net AED 6,710,180 were classified as discontinued operations.
Subsequent to the year-end, the management's intention to dispose these investment properties (Note 7) was
changed vide board resolution dated 13 February 2025. Consequently, these have been reclassified as
investment properties as at 31 December 2024.
28 Financial instruments and risk management

Matenal accounting policies

Details of matenal policies and methods adopted including the criteria for recognition for the basis of
measurement in respect of each class of financial assets and financial liabilities are disclosed in Note 3 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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28

Financial instruments and risk management [continued)
Fair value messurements

The fair values of fimancial assets and financial abilities are determined as fiollows:

= The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilties with standard terms and conditions and traded on
aotive liguid markets are determined with reference io quoted market bid prices at the cose of the
business on the reporting date.

= The fair values of other financial assets and financial liabilities are determined in accordance with gensrally
aoocepted pricing models based on discounted cash fiow analysis using prices from cbservable cument
market fransactions and dealer quotes for similar instruments.

Fair value is the prce that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liakbility in an ordery
transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly
observable or estimated using amother valuation technigue. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a
liabiliny, the Group takes into account the charactenstics of the asset or liability if market participants would
take those characteristics imto account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.

Management considers that the camying amounts of financial assets and finandcial liabilities recognised in the
consolidated financial statements approximate their fair values.

Financia! ik management objectives

The Group's financial risk management policies set out the Group's overall business strategies and risk
management philosophy. The Group's overall financial risk management program se=ks to minimise potential
adverse effects to the financial performance of the Group. The management cames cut overall financial risk
management covering specific areas, such as market risk (including foreign exchange risk and interest rate
risk), credit risk, and liguidity risk and investing excess cash.

The Group's activities expose it to a vanely of finandial risks, induding the effects of changes in foreign
curency exchange rates and interest rates.

The Group does not hold or issue derivative finamcial instruments for speculative purposes.

Interesf sk

The Group's exposure to the msk of chamges in market interest rates relates pimarly to the Group's
bormmowings with floating interest rates. The Group’s policy is to manage its interest cost using a mix of fixed
and variable rate debts_ Interest on financial imstruments hawving floating rates is re-priced at intervals of less

than one year and interest on financial instruments having fixed rate is fixed until the matunty of the
instrument.

Interesf rafe sensitivify analyaiz

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher{lower) and all other vanables were held constant, the
Group’s profit for the year then ended would (decreaselincrease by AED 117,773 (2023: (decrease)increase
by AED 135 888).

Markef risk
The Group's activiies expose it pimarily io the fimancal risks of changes in foreign currency exchange rates
and interest rates.

Market risk exposures are measured using sensitivity analysis. There has been no change to the Group's
exposure to market nisks or the mamner in which it manages and measures the risk.

Foreign currency nsk

The camying amounts of the Group's foreign curmency denominated monetary assets at the end of the
reporting date are as follows:

2024 2023
AED AED

Kirwaiti Dinar 14 735 680 15,048,406
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Financial instruments and risk management (continued)

The camying amounts of the Group's foreign currency denominated monetary liabilities at the end of the
reporting dafte are as follows:

2024 2023
AED AED
Liabilities
Kuweaiti Dinar 162,063 300,659

Foreign cuvrency sengitivify analysiz

The following table details the Group's sensitivity to a 10% decrease in the AED against the relevant foreign
cumencies. The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding forsign currency denominated monetany items
and adjusts their translation at the year-end for 3 10% change in forsign curmency rates. A negative number
below indicates a decrease in profit and other equity where the AED strengthens 10% against the relevant
cumency. For a 109 stremgthening of the AED against the relevant cumency, there would be an equal and
opposite impact on the profit and other eguity, and the balamnces below would be positive.

2024 2023
AED AED
Profit and loss at the end of the year
Kiweaiti Dinar 1,467 362 1,474,784

Credit risk

Credit sk refers to the nsk that a counterparty will default on its contractual ebligations resulting in fimancial
loss to the Group. As at 31 December 2024, the Group’s maximum exposure to credit sk without taking into
account any collateral held or other credit enhancements, which will cause a finandial loss to the Group due to
failure to discharge an cbligation by the counterparties and financial guarantees provided by the Group arses
fram the camying amount of the respective recognised financial assets as stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position.

In arder to minimise credit risk, the Group has tasked its management to develop and maintsin the Group's
credit risk gradings fo categorise exposures according fo their degree of risk of default The credit rating
information is supplied by independent rating agencies where svailable and, if not available, management
uses other publidy available fimancial information and the Group's own frading records to rate s major
customers and other debtors. The Group's exposure and the credit ratings of its counterparties are
continuowsly monitored and the aggregate value of tramsactions conduded is spread amongst approved
counterparties.

The Group's current credit isk grading framewaork comprises the following categaories:

Liquidity risk

Ultimate responsibility for liguidity risk management rests with the management which has built an appropriate
liguidity risk management framewark for the management of the Group’s short, medium and long-term funding
and ligquidity mamagement reguirements. The Group manages liguidity risk by maintaining adeguate reserves
by confinuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of fimancial
assets and abilities.

The Securties and Commodities Authority (the Authority) issued its letter dated Aprl 30, 2023 reference
number EM.SHEFH2582023, stating that the Authority has been appointed to manage the uncollected profits
of locally listed public joint stock companies prior to March 2015 and requires public joint stock companies to
stop the company's procedures for distributing uncollected profits prior to March 2015 from receipt of the letter
and to transfer the full value of uncollected profits prior to March 2015 to the Authority's account no later than
May 21, 2023. As on 31 December 2024, the remaining dues of the uncollected profits amounted to AED 562

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Group's financial instruments. The contractual
maturities of the financial instruments have been determined on the basis of the emaining perod at the
reporting date to the contractual matunty date. The matunty profile is monitored by management fo ensure
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Financial instruments and risk management [continued)

adequate liquidity is maintained. The maturty profile of the financial assets and financial liabilities at the
reporting date based on contractual repayment arangements was as follows:

Particulars

Financial liabilities
Lease liakilities
Bank bomowings

Particulars

Financial assets

Imvestments at fair value
thircugh other comprehensive
imcome (FWTOC)

Investments at fair value
thirough profit or loss (FYTPL)

Dwe from a related party
Trade and other recsivables
Cash and cash equivalents

Financial liabilities
Dividend payable

Dwe to a related party
Trade and other payables

Interest bearing
On demand or Within 1 year More than 1 Total
less than 3 year
manths
As at 31 December 2024

35,748 35,748 - 71,496

- 3,884,211 18,870,418 23,554 B30

36, T48 3,719,958 19,870,418 23,626,126

Mon-interest bearing
On demand or Within 1 year More than 1 Total
less than 3 wear
manths
As at 31 December 2024

- - 14 468,656 14,466 656

- 160,248 - 180,246

- 300,000 - 300,000

- 407 418 - 407 418

GO7,.280 - - B5T 289

BT 285 88T 664 14,466 B56 16,031,608

- g2 - 562

- 530z - 534,012

- 2,715,009 - 2,715,005

- 3,249 583 - 3,249 583
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Financial instruments and risk management |continued)

Particulars

Financial liabilities
Lease liakilities
Bank bomowings

Particulars

Financial assets

Irvestments at fair value
throwgh other comprehensive
income (FYTOCH)

Investments at fair value
throwgh profit or loss (FYTPL)

Cue from a related party
Trade and other recsivables
Cash and cash equivalents

Financial liabilities

DCividend payable
Trade and other payables

Capital nzk management

Interest bearing

On demand or Within 1 year More than 1 year Tiotal
less than 3
mionths

As gt 31 December 2023

35,848 37544 71,686 425 088

- 3.6884.211 23493078 27 17T 285

35 B4R 4,001 755 23,564 774 27,802 377

Mon-interest bearing

On demand or Within 1 year More than 1 year Total
less tham 3
months

As gt 31 December 2023

- - 14,520,128 14,590 128

- 035,846 - 635 946

- 50,000 - 50,000

- 733,807 - 733 807

B0 481 - - 958 481

9549 451 1,419,753 14,559 128 16,978 342

- g2 - 562

- 1.753.850 - 1,753,850

- 1,754 412 - 1,754 412

The Group manages its capital to ensure that it will be able to continue a5 3 going concem while maxdimizing
the refumn to stakeholders through the optimization of the eguity balance and complying with stabutory

reguirsments.

The capital structure of the Group include of share capital of AED 78,901,086 (2023: AED 78,801,086),
statwtory reserve of AED 34,889,340 (2023: AED 33,190,038), voluntary resserve of AED 15,188,358 (2023:
AED 13,508,087), debit balance in fair value reserve of AED 3,274,088 (2023: debit balamce of AED
3,280,770), debit balance in foreign curmency translation reserse of AED 732,303 (2023: debit balance of AED
681,710) and retained eamings of AED 14,657 502 (2023: AED 1,388,183) as disclosed in the consolidated
financial statements. The Group's capital rescurces amount fo AED 139,609,855 (2023 AED 123,005,935
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Fair walue hierarchy

At year end, the Group held the following financial and mon-financial assets measured at fair value:

As at 31 December 2024

Financial assets:
Investments camied at FWTFL

Cuoted shares

Unguoted shares
Investments carmied at FWVTOC]

Cluoted shares

Unguoted shares
Mon-financial assets:

Investment properties

As at 31 December 2023

Financial assets:
Investments camied at FWVTFL

Cuoted shares

Unguoted shares
Investments camied at FWVTOC]

Quoted shares

Unguoted shares
Mon-financial assets:

Investment properties
Mon-curment assets held for sale

Lewvel 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
AED AED AED AED

- - 160,248 160,248

11,942, 692 - - 11,942 692
- - 2 523 964 2 523 964

- - 153,350,000 153,350,000

11,942 692 - 158,034 210 1679765902
Level 1 Lewel 2 Lewel 3 Total
AED AED AED AED

406 016 - - 405 016

- - 136,030 130,030
11,760,583 - - 11,760,583
- - 2,520,545 2,820,545

- - 103,650,000 103,850,000

- - 33,100,000  33.100,000
12,266,409 - 138,718,575 151,9385074

Ciuring thie year, there wers no fransfers between the vanous levels of fair value measurements.
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Uncertainty related to key estimates
Fair value of investmentz

The fair value of equities decreases as 3 result of changes in the levels of equity indsx and the valus of
individual stocks. The Group's listed and unlisted equity securities are suscepiible o market price risk arising
from uncertainties abowt future values of the investiment securities.

The effect on equity (fair value reserve} as a result of a change in the fair value of eguity instruments guoied
on the different stock exchange markets and held at FYTOC! at 31 December 2024, dus to reasonably
possible changes in the prices of these guoted shares held by the Group, with all other vanables held
constant, is as follows:

Market Index

Change in Effect on
market equity (fair
prices value
reserve)

Yo AED

3 December 2024

Kiwait +5% 507,135
E% (507,135)

3 December 2023
Kureeait +5% 52E.470
-5%. (588473

Seasonality of results

The Group's income consists of rental and investment income. Rental income is not significantly affected by
any seascnal impact as it depends on annual l=ase contracts which are recognised in the consclidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive imcome on a straight-line method and in accordance with
different terms of these lease contracts. In addition, there is limited fluctuation on the rent rates where the
Group's invesiment properties are located.

Investment income depends on market conditions, investment activities of the Group and dedaration of profit
by invesies companies, which are of 3 seasonal nature. Accordingly, results of imeestment income for the year
ended 31 December 2024 are not comparable to those relating to the comparative period amd are mot
indicative of the resulis that might be expected for the year ended 31 December 2024

Contingent liabilities and capital commitments

The Group is subject to liRigations in the normal cowrse of business, mainly on claims relating to recoveries of
chegues from tenants. Although the ultimate outcome of these claims cannot be presently determined, the
total amount of claims is not material o the Group's consolidated financial statements.

Except for the above and ongoing business obligations which are under nomal course of business, thers
have been no other known contingent liabilities and capital commitments on the Group's consolidated financial
statements as of reporting date.

Events after the reporting period

Subsequent to the year end, on 13 February 2025, the Board of Directors have resolved to classified non-
cument assets held for sale as investment properiies owing to & chamge in the management's intention to
dispose these investment properties (Mote 27).

Other than above, thers are no significant events after the reporting pericd, which affect the consclidated
finamcial statements or disdosures.
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a5 Reclassification

Dwring the year, management has had to reclassify balances within the consolidated statement of financial
position and consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, to provide a better
understanding of the operations.

Howewver, it does not have any immpact on the profit or loss and other comprehensive income or eguity of the
Group.
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Introduction

In its internal policy, the company has followed the highest professional levels over the past years to optimally
implement governance rules, The Board of Directors considers that the existence of a strong governance system as
one of the cornerstones of the Company’s sustainable and long-term growth. The Board is committed to enhance the
value of the Company for its shareholders, taking into account the interests of all stakeholders, employees, suppliers,
customers, business partners, as well as the communities in which the Company operates.

Our most important objectives are to reach with the company’'s management to the best practices in an effective and
dynamic manner to serve all the shareholders by organizing the management’s main responsibilities and tasks,
developing its decision-making strategy, and clearly defining its objectives to achieve them as soon as possible in
order to encourage long-term investment and achieve financial stability and business integrity, which ultimately leads
to achieving sustainable growth. To achieve this goal, the company’s Board of Directors approved the (Corporate
Governance System) in accordance with all legal and requlatory requirements related to the rules of professional
conduct and corporate governance, in particular, the directives issued regarding the implementation of the
Authority’s Chairman of the Board of Directors’ Decision No. (3/Chairman) of 2020 regarding the adoption of the
Governance Guide for Public Joint Stock Companies.

The Company’s governance framework takes into consideration the application of the principles and standards set by
both: the Securities and Commodities Authority and Abu Dhabi Securities Exchange, as well as Federal Decree-Law
No. (32) of 2021 on Commercial Companies, as amended, in order to develop the Company’s policy, requirements and
aspirations.

This report gives an overview of ARAM Group corporate governance systems and procedures as of December 3lst ,
2023, and has been posted on the Abu Dhabi Exchange (ADX) website and the Group's website. This report is governed
by the Resolution of the Board of the Securities and Commodities Authority (SCA) No. 3/Chairman of 2020 in regard to
the Corporate Discipline and Governance Standards of Public Joint Stock Companies, and the format of this report is
as prescribed by SCA.
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1.0 Governance Application in ARAM Group Company

Shareholders represent the highest levels of governance, and the Company's Articles of Association define the
framework through which ARAM Group Company shall operate to develop its policy, requirements and aspirations.
The Board of Directors is accountable to the shareholders for ensuring that the Company’s objectives are in line with
their expectations, ensuring he effectiveness of the businesses of the Company’s management, with the emphasis
that the Company’s objectives are consistent with the statutory requirements and the professional codes of conduct
defined by both Securities and Commodities Authority and Abu Dhabi Securities Exchange.

In the context of constant monitoring to measure the effectiveness of the application of the governance system, the
Board of Directors periodically reviews the governance framework and amends its elements (where necessary) to
ensure its consistency with the requlatory controls and changing business environment.

The following diagram illustrates the governance framework and the key elements resulting from the application of
the Company's governance system:

Securities & Commodity Authority
Abu Dhabi Securities Exchange,
Laws & Regulation

Shareholders,
Annual General Assemblies,
Article of Association

Nomination & .
Audit

Committee

Remuneration
Committee
Board of Directors

External Auditors Compliance Officer

Executive Management

As indicated above, the application of the governance system involves different levels, including Board of Directors,
Executive Management, Board of Directors Committees, and the compliance officer.

The Board of Directors performs periodic reviews regarding the application of standards and systems of governance
in the Company, taking into consideration the legal and regulatory requirements and controls of these systems, and
the application of the highest international standards in this field.
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2.0 A statement of the ownership and transactions of board members, their spouses, and their children
in the company’s securities during the year 2024

According to the company's policy of establishing governance principles in the trading's of the company's Board
Members (along with all employees and insiders of the Company) and based on their belief in the importance and
necessity of compliance with the rules and regulations controlling their transactions and trading’s in the shares and
securities of the Company. they are also prohibited to use any undisclosed internal information for personal interest
or to remove a harm that may affect them as a result of any undisclosed material information according to the Article
12 of the instructions of listing securities in Abu Dhabi Securities Exchange (ADX), which states:

“The Chairman and members of the Board of Directors of a company whose securities are listed on the market, its
general manager, or any employee familiar with the basic data of the company may not trade, personally or through
others, by dealing in the securities of the mother company, subsidiary, allied or sister company of that company
during the following periods:

1- 10 business days before announcing material information that would affect the stock price up or down, unless the
information results from urgent and sudden events.

2- 15 days before the end of the annual and quarterly financial period and until the financial statements for that
quarter are disclosed.

Based on the foregoing, and in the light of the disclosures made by the Board of Directors, the following table shows
the shares and securities owned by the Directors and their first-degree relatives (their spouses and children) in the
Company's share capital as of December 31, 2024, and the Trading’s in the Company’s Shares carried out by them
during the year 2024:

Shares Owned as of  Shares Owned by first-degree  Total sales ;:::Ihases
Position / relationship December 31,2024  relatives in the capital of the transactions .
(Share) company (Share) (Share) fransactions
(Share)
Khamis Mohamed Khamls Chairman NA _ NA NA
Buharoon Alshamsi
Mansoor Abduljabbar . .
Ahmed Alsayegh Vice Chairman NA NA NA
NaJouq Abdulla Mohammad Board Member NA B NA NA
Burahima
Alya2|a. Naser Yousef Naser Board Member NA B NA NA
Alzaabi
Ziyad Mahmoud Khairallah g o\ Mo mper 6,319,890 - NA 3,871,099
Alhaji Alharmouzi




-

60| Integrated Report 2024

3.0 ARAM Group Boards of Directors

The role of the Board of Directors is to supervise the Company's business affairs. The Board of Directors is
responsible for monitoring the effectiveness of the governance framework, controlling and supervising the
management and controls applied in the Company. The Board has delegated some of its authorities to its
Committees (Audit Committee, Nomination and Remunerations Committee) which operate
according to the Charters and Regulations approved by it and submits its reports and recommendations to the Board
of Directors out of responsibility and transparency.
The Board has also delegated the tasks of the day-to-day management of the Company to the Group Chief Executive
Officer to ensure balance and suitability between the level of control and the risks management and work
requirements within the Company with regard to its developments and changes in its activities and operations.

3.1Formation of ARAM Group Board of Directors

The Board of Directors currently includes four Members, according to the following table:

Position

Category
(executive,
non-executive,
independent)

Experiences

Qualifications

Date of
appointment as
BOD member

Membership of
the Directors in
other Public Joint
Stock Companies

Positions in any
other important
supervisory,
governmental or
business entities

Alzaabi

Sector

Abu Dhabi

o o e
Khamis Mohamed . o . o . Dhabi National Independ
. . Finance and Business Since Oct 7, 2021 ) )
Khamis Buharoon  [Chairman Independent L . Takaful Company, |Managing Director
. Real Estate Administration, to date . .
Alshamsi i . Board Member at [in Royal Capital
experience of [and other banking .
Agthia PJSC
35 years courses
Overall Bachelor's degree
Abduljabbar Ahmed Chal.rman of Independent marketing and [and marketing Since Dec 14th, N/A Officer at Al
Audit . . 2023 to date Sayegh Group
Alsayegh R the financial strategy from
Committee
sector of 15 Curry College,
years USA
Board Member / Overall Master's Dearee in Project Advisor
Najoud Abdulla Chairman of Experiencein . g . and Tourism
- Business Since Feb 20th,
Mohammad Nomination & [Independent Real Estate . . N/A Expert at the
. . Administration 2024 to date L
Burahima Remuneration Sector Ministry of
Committee Economy
h Overall Graduated from
Alyazia Naser Experiencein |Emirates Private |Since Dec 14th
Yousef Naser Board Member [Independent Banking School Academy, |2023 to date N/A N/A
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In this regard, it should be noted that the membership of the Board of Directors consisted mostly of the independent
members since the establishment of the Company according to the decision of the Chairman of the Authority No.
(3/Chairman) of 2020 on the adoption of the Corporate Governance Manual of Public Joint Stock Companies.

The Board has adopted a policy on the independency of Members, under which the independence of each Member is
assessed annually, which falls within scope of the responsibilities of the Nominations and Remunerations Committee.
Accordingly, the conflict of interests and the emergence of relationships that may arise on independent members,
which in turn may lead to a breach of independence, shall be reported and the relevant procedures shall be taken into
account if the Board finds any defect or a decline in the capacity of their independence.

3.2 Profile of Board Members

Khamis Mohamed Khamis Buharoon Alshamsi

Chairman
Independent

Mr. Khamis Buharoon has joined the Board of Directors of Aram Group Company since October
2021, with more than 35 years’ experience in a multitude of advisory roles in the UAE. He is also
Chairman of Abu Dhabi National Takaful Company PJSC, and Board Member in Agthia Group PJSC.
Mr. Buharoon Al Shamsi spent 14 years at Abu Dhabi Islamic Bank, from 2007 to March 2021. During
this time, he held many roles including managing director, member of the board of directors, vice-
chairman of the board of directors, and acting CEO for two years. As well as served the Chairman of
Board of Directors for Burooj Real estate and He most recently served as the Vice Chairman of Abu
Dhabi Islamic Bank.

Buharoon contributed in establishing several investment companies such as Argaam Capital
Investment in DIFC, UBL and served as a board member in Tharawat Investment House in the
Kingdom of Bahrain, Naeem Holdings in Egypt and Unifund Capital Financial Investment in the UAE
from 2009 to 2017 and the Chairman of Etihad Capital in the UAE.

Khamis Buharoon holds a bachelor’s degree in business and accounting.

Mansoor Abduljabbar Abdulmohsen Ahmed Alsayegh

= A

4

Vice Chairman
Independent

Mansoor Al Sayegh is the Group Chief Executive Officer of the Al Sayegh Group (ASG) since 2010 to
date, which is a group of companies owned by the Sayegh family and established in 1980. He is in
charge of overseeing and supervising all of the group’s companies due to his position.

In 2008, Mansoor began his professional journey at Mubadala Investment Company. Subsequently,
he progressed to Corporate Banking, where he acquired significant expertise in the financial
sector.

Mr. Mansoor is a well-respected counsel in the Abu Dhabi business community due to his vast
network in both the public and private commercial sectors of the UAE in addition to his experience
and in-depth knowledge of the market. He is a member of the Youth Business Council of the Abu
Dhabi Chamber of Commerce and Industry and a member of several general government
committees.

He holds a bachelor's degree in business communication and marketing strategy from Curry
College in the United States of America 2009
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Najoud Abdulla Mohammad Burahima

Board Member
Independent

Najoud Abdullah Burahima is one of the most prominent Emirati women entrepreneurs, with her
insightful vision and exceptional leadership, she was able to distinguish herself in the field of
business in the United Arab Emirates.

Ms. Najoud Abdullah Burahima is illustrious by her innovative and persevering spirit, as she
constantly pursues exploring new opportunities and achieves success in a lightning-fast business
setting. In addition, Najoud has been able to achieve remarkable success in other roles such as
project advisor and tourism expert at the Ministry of Economy, and Director of the Minister's Office
in the Sheikh Zayed Housing Programme from 2011 to 2017.

Ms. Najoud has extensive experience in managing and establishing businesses and holds a master’s
degree in business administration in 2016.

Alyazia Naser Yousef Naser Alzaabi

Board Member
Independent

Al Yazia Al Zaabi is a young Emirati leader who has an overall experience in Banking field, As she
worked with RAK Bank since 2023 till date.

Alyazia is an inspiring model for Emirati women with her ambition to reinforce the position of
women in community development and promote youth participation locally and internationally and
develop their expertise in various fields. Thus, she is the first female member to hold the position of
board member at Aram Group Company PJSC

Al-Yazia studied at the Emirates Private Schools Academy, Abu Dhabi - United Arab Emirates.

She participated in many training courses, workshops and national initiatives to activate and
empower young Emirati talents.
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3.3 Women Representation in the Board of Directors during 2024

In its current formation, the Board of Directors includes two female members (Board members), which is equivalent
to 50% of the composition of the Board of Directors represented in the joining of Ms. Alyazia Alzaabi to the Company’s
Board of Directors, through the process and procedures for re-election and formation of the Company’s Board of
Directors in accordance with the decision issued by the Company’s shareholders at the General Assembly held on
December 14th , 2023. Additionally, Mrs. Najoud Burahima joined the Board of Directors on February 20, 2024, to fill
the vacant position following the resignation of the previous Board member, Mr. Ahmed Al Sarkal.

3.4 Remunerations and Allowances which were received by the Board of Directors members

Article (38) of the Articles of Association of ARAM Group Company provides that:

“The remuneration of the Board Chairman and members shall be a percentage of the net profit, provided that it shall
not exceed 10% of the net profits of the fiscal year. The Company may also pay expenses, fees, additional bonus or a
monthly salary to the extent decided by the Board of Directors to the Board member who serves in any committee,
makes special efforts or performs additional work to serve the Company in excess of his/her regular duties as a Board
member. Attendance allowance may not be paid to the chairman or the Board members for attending Board
meetings.”

Article (60) of the Articles of Association defines the distribution method of net profits. The net annual profits of the
Company are distributed after deduction of all general expenses and other costs as follows:

o Ten percent(10%) shall be deducted and allocated to the legal reserve. This deduction shall be stopped when the
total reserve amounts to 50% of the Company’s paid-up capital. If the reserve decreased, the deduction shall be
resumed.

e The General Assembly shall consider the recommendations of the Board of Directors in relation to the percentage
proposed for the distribution of the net profits among the shareholders, after deducting the reserves and
depreciations. However, if the distribution of the profits was not permitted in any year, they cannot be claimed
from the profits of the following years.

¢ Apercentage shall be allocated as a remuneration of the members of the Board of Directors, provided that it shall
not exceed (10%) of the net profits of the ending fiscal year after deducting all the depreciations and reserves.
The Board shall propose the said remuneration, and the same shall be presented to the General Assembly for
consideration. Fines that may have been imposed on the Company by the Authority or the Competent Authority
due to violations committed by the Board of Directors of the Companies Law or the Articles of Association during
the ended fiscal year shall be deducted from the remuneration. The General Assembly may decide not to deduct
such fines or some of them if it deems that they were not the result of a default, or an error made by the Board of
Directors.

¢ The remaining net profits shall be distributed, carried forward, upon the recommendation of the Board of
Directors, to the following year or allocated to establish a voluntary reserve for specific purpose, and it may not
be used for any other purpose except with a resolution of the Company's General Assembly.

Total Remunerations of the Members of the Board of Directors for the year 2023

Based on the decision issued by the General Assembly of the Company at its meeting held on April 22, 2024, the total
remuneration received by the members of the Company's previous Board of Directors for the fiscal year ending on
December 31, 2023 amounted to AED 400,000.00 (Four Hundred Thousand Dirhams).
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Total proposed remunerations of the Directors for 2024

It has been proposed to distribute remuneration to the Board of Directors members for the year 2024 in the amount

of AED 500,000.00 (Five Hundred Thousand Dirhams), which will be presented at the annual general assembly
meeting for approval.

Details of the allowances for attending sessions of the Committees emanating from the Board, which
were received by the Board Members for the year 2024

No allowances or remunerations were paid to the board members for attending the committee meetings emanating
from the board during the year 2024.

Details of additional allowances, salaries or fees received by a Board Member, during the year 2024,
other than the allowances for attending the Committees

No allowances, salaries, or additional fees were disbursed during the year 2024.

3.5 Board Meetings during 2024 and Attendance of Board Members

Statement of the number of meetings held by the Board of Directors during the fiscal year. The Board of Directors had
convened five meetings during 2024 as follows:

Meeting Date No. of Attendance No. of attendees by proxy No. of Absent Members Names of Absent Members
1 20th Feb, 2024 4 (Via Video-call) - - -
2 | 14thMarch, 2024 4(Via Video-call) - - Ziyad Mahmoud Khairaliah
Alhaji Alharmouzi
- Ziyad Mahmoud Khairallah
3 14th May, 2024 4 (Via Video-call) Alhaji Alharmouzi
4 | 13th Aug, 2024 4(Via Video-call) - - Zlyad Mahmoud Khairallah
Alhaji Alharmouzi
5 13th Nov, 2024 4(Via Video-call) - - -
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Below are details of Board Meetings attendance during the year 2024 as follows:

Board of Directors No. of First Meeting Second Meeting  Third Meeting Fourth Meeting  Fifth Meeting
Absences 20 Feb,2024 14th Mar, 2024 14th May, 2024  13th Aug, 202 13th Nov, 2024

Mr. Khamis Mohamed Khamis Buharoon

Alshamsi ) v v v v v

Mr. Mansoor Abduljabbar Abdulmohsen

Ahmed Alsayegh v v v v v

Mr. Ziyad M'ahmoud Khairallah Alhaji 3 v B B B B

Alharmouzi

Mrs. Najoud Abdulla Mohammad Burahima - -

Ms. Alyazia Naser Yousef Naser Alzaabi - v

3.6 Summary of Board Resolutions Passed During 2024

¢ Board Resolutions passed by circulation during 2024

Article (29) of the Articles of Association of ARAM Group regarding Board Resolutions passed by circulation provides
that:

“Without prejudice to the minimum number of Board meetings required under Article 28 above, the Board of Directors
may issue some of its resolutions by circulation in urgent instances. These decisions shall be valid and effective as if
they were made at a meeting summoned and duly convened, taking into consideration that:

- The number of instances for issuing a Board resolution by circulation shall not exceed four (4)times per year.

- The majority of the directors approve that the instance requiring the issuance of a resolution by circulation is
considered urgent.

- The directors are provided with the resolution by circulation in writing for their approval, and attached with all
documents required for review.

- The majority of the directors must approve in writing the resolutions by circulation, and such resolutions by
circulation shall be presented during the next board meeting to be included in the minutes of the said meeting.

During the fiscal year 2024, no resolutions were passed by the Board of Directors through circulation.

¢ Resolutions Passed at the Board of Directors Meetings

Resolutions Passed

Meeting Date

-Appointing Mr. Khamis Mohamed Khamis Buharoon Alshamsi as a Board of Directors Chairman in state of resigned
Chairman.

-Appointing Mrs. Najoud Abdulla Burahima in the vacant position, provided that such appointment shall be submitted to
the General Assembly to confirm or appoint another member, the new Board Member shall complete the term of her
predecessor.

-Reforming the Audit Committee and the Nomination and Remuneration Committee.

1 20 Feb, 2024

-Approved the Audited financial statements for the fiscal year ended 31/12/2023.
-Approved the Agenda for General Assembly, and determined the date of the meeting to be on April 15th, 2024 at 11:00
am in company office.

2 14 March, 2024

3 14 May, 2024 -Approved the Audited financial statements for Q1, 2024.

4 13 Aug, 2024 -Approved the Audited financial statements for 02, 2024.

-Approved the Audited financial statements for 03, 2024 ended 30.09.2024.

® 15th Nov, 2024 -Electing Mr. Mansoor Abduljabbar Ahmed Alsayegh as a Board of Directors Vice Chairman.
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4.0 Committees of the Board of Directors of Aram Group Company

4.1 Audit Committee
« Ratification of Audit Committee Chairman

Mr. Mansoor Abduljabbar Al Sayegh, The Chairman of the Audit Committee acknowledges responsibility for
discharging the Audit Committee’s mandate across the Company, reviewing its work mechanism, and ensuring its
effectiveness.

The Audit Committee assists the Board of Directors in discharging its responsibilities with respect to Internal Control
Systems, accounting policies, financial reporting, compliance, and internal and external audits. The Audit Committee
ensures that the main objectives of the Company are achieved effectively and efficiently, within a tight framework of
internal controls, risk management and governance.

« Formation of the audit committee

The Committee is formed upon a decision by the Board of Directors, which determines its name and duties. The
Committee is formed immediately after determining the Board of Directors positions who were elected by the
General Assembly.

The Audit Committee consists of three independent members appointed on February 20, 2024, as per the following
table:

Audit Committee Members Position Category

Mr. Mansoor Abduljabbar Abdulmohsen Ahmed Alsayegh Chair of the Committee Independent
Mrs. Najoud Abdulla Mohammad Burahima Member Independent
Ms. Alyazia Naser Yousef Naser Alzaabi Member Independent

The Audit Committee is responsible for monitoring the company's financial statements, recommending changes to
the company's control systems and financial system, monitoring accounting practices, and recommending the
nomination of an external auditor.

The Audit Committee has powers to study any activity within its own revision terms. It is authorized to reach the
external and internal auditor, obtain information relevant to audit work, and seek the assistance of any internal or
external specialized party to provide professional consultancy on any matter related to the company’s accounts. It
also has powers to request any information it needs from any employee or Board member; therefore, the Board
members and employees are directed to cooperate with any demand from the Committee.

¢ Audit Committee Meetings During the Year 2024
The following table shows the number of meetings held by the committee consisting of the Board of Directors

members to discuss matters related to the financial statements and monitor the status of Aram Group Company’s
compliance with applicable laws and requlations and any other matters:

No. of First Meeting Second Meeting Third Meeting Fourth Meeting

Audit Committee HMembers absences 26 Feb, 2024 10 May, 2024 12 Aug, 2024 08 Nov, 2024

Mr. Mansoor Abduljabbar Ahmed Alsayegh - 4 4 v v

Mrs. Najoud Abdulla Mohammad Burahima - \/ \/ \/ \/

Ms. Alyazia Naser Yousef Naser Alzaabi - \/ \/ \/ \/
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¢ Audit Committee Report:
The Audit Committee Report of Aram Group Company outlines the responsibilities assigned to the Audit Committee
and the procedures followed as follows:

- Significant matters considered by the committee in relation to the financial statements and the
procedures implemented to address these matters:

The Audit Committee has thoroughly reviewed all significant matters with management and external auditors,
including the auditors' opinions on the quarterly and annual financial statements, and has submitted its
recommendations to the Board of Directors for approval. Furthermore, the Committee has overseen the accuracy
and reliability of the company’s financial data, scrutinized key provisions within the financial reports, and addressed
significant accounting and reporting issues. The Committee has emphasized the importance of strict adherence to
financial reporting standards, regulatory requirements, listing and disclosure obligations, and other legal frameworks
governing the preparation of financial reports.

- The approach adopted for the appointment of the external auditor, along with the assessment of the
auditor's independence and the effectiveness of the external audit process.

The Audit Committee adopts a systematic approach in the selection of the external auditor and in evaluating the
independence and effectiveness of the external audit process. This is achieved through the formulation and
implementation of a comprehensive external auditor engagement policy. The Committee submits detailed reports
and recommendations to the Board of Directors, highlighting critical issues that require attention and offering
guidance on the appropriate actions to be taken.

In addition, the Audit Committee has defined the terms of engagement for the external auditor, including the
issuance of the engagement letter at the commencement of each audit and the scope of the audit. The Committee
also conducts an annual evaluation of the auditor’'s independence and objectivity in accordance with professional and
regulatory standards.

The Committee convenes reqularly to assess the auditor's performance, the adequacy of the accounting policies
applied in the financial statements, and to ensure that senior management takes prompt corrective actions to
address the auditor’s findings and recommendations in a timely manner.

- The Committee's recommendation concerning the appointment, reappointment, or dismissal of the
external auditor.

The Audit Committee unanimously recommended the re-appointment of the external auditor, Messrs. Crowe Mac, for
the fiscal year 2024, during its meeting held on February 26, 2024, for Board approval. The re-appointment was
subsequently unanimously approved in the Board of Directors' meeting held on March 14, 2024.

- The independence of the external auditor when performing services beyond the scope of the
company’s audit engagement.

In order to maintain the independence of the external auditor when providing services beyond the scope of the
company's audit engagement, in compliance with business requirements, the Audit Committee diligently monitors
and assesses the auditor's independence and objectivity. This is achieved through discussions concerning the nature,
scope, and effectiveness of the audit engagement, ensuring alignment with established auditing standards. In 2024,
the external auditor did not provide any services other than the audit of the company's financial statements.
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- The procedures implemented to address any deficiencies in the event of failures in internal control
systems.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing and monitoring the implementation of the risk management
framework and internal control systems in accordance with its policies and business strategies. It continuously
evaluates the efficiency and effectiveness of these policies and strategies through audits of records, information
databases, network security systems, and control mechanisms for both operational and strategic units. In 2024, no
deficiencies were identified within the internal control and risk management systems.

- Internal Control and Risk Management Reports

The Audit Committee is committed to ensuring the reqular review of the company's internal control systems,
engaging in discussions with executive management regarding the internal control framework. The Committee
oversees the corrective actions taken by management in response to identified findings and recommendations,
ensuring that executive management appropriately and promptly addresses any weaknesses in the control systems,
non-compliance with policies, laws, regulations, and other issues highlighted by internal control personnel.

- The corrective action plan in the event of material deficiencies in the areas of risk management and
internal control systems.

The Committee has implemented policies, procedures, and controls to ensure the timely reporting of any potential
deficiencies in the company’'s reports. This includes conducting audits of company records and information systems,
reviewing the outcomes of key audits concerning internal control matters, assessing the effectiveness of internal
control and compliance functions, particularly in relation to planning, monitoring, and reporting, and evaluating the
performance of the internal control and compliance officer, providing appropriate advice and guidance in a timely
manner.

In the event that any deficiencies in internal control performance are identified, the Committee oversees the
investigation process to ensure its independence and integrity. The Committee also reviews the actions taken by
management to address the reported violations, ensuring that corrective actions are implemented and subsequently
presented to the Board for further action in accordance with applicable laws and regulations.

As previously stated, no material deficiencies were identified in the internal control performance at Aram Group
Company during 2024, which demonstrates the effectiveness and efficiency of the policies and procedures
implemented by the Audit Committee in collaboration with executive management and internal control personnel.

4.2 Nomination and Remuneration Committee
+ Ratification of Nomination and Remuneration Committee Chairman

Mrs. Najoud Abdulla Mohammad Burahima, The Chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
acknowledges responsibility for discharging the Nomination and Remuneration Committee’s mandate across the
Company, reviewing its work mechanism, and ensuring its effectiveness.

The Nominations and Remunerations Committee reports to the Board on culture, performance and compensation
policies that reflect best practices, and makes recommendations on the succession plans of the Board, taking into
account the challenges and opportunities facing the Company and the skills and experiences needed in the future.
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« Formation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee consists of three independent members appointed on February 20,
2024, as per the following table:

Nomination and Remuneration Committee Members Position Category

Mrs. Najoud Abdulla Mohammad Burahima Chair of the Committee Independent
Mr. Mansoor Abduljabbar Abdulmohsen Ahmed Alsayegh Member Independent
Ms. Alyazia Naser Yousef Naser Alzaabi Member Independent

The role of the committee is to determine the individual and total remuneration for members of the Board of
Directors in accordance with the framework approved in the Corporate Law and the Governance Resolution, develop
a remuneration policy for executive management related to the company’s performance, and determine the payroll
caps including salaries, bonuses, and incentive programs.

The committee is also responsible for preparing and reviewing human resources policies and relevant systems,
supervising procedures, and reviewing the nomination of members of the Board of Directors. The Committee is
granted powers by the Board of Directors to study any activity within its revision terms and it is authorized
unconditionally to get any professional consultancy on any matter related to the company.

The committee has the authority to request any information it needs from any employee or member of the Board of
Directors; therefore, the Board members and employees are directed to cooperate with any request submitted by the
Committee.

* Nomination and Remuneration Committee Meetings During the Year 2024

The following table shows the number of meetings held by the committee consisting of members of the previous
Board of Directors during the year 2024.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee Members No. of absences g:ite:;‘;t;:g

Mr. Ziyad Mahmoud Khairallah Alhaji Alharmouzi - \/
Mr. Khamis Mohamed Khamis Buharoon Alshamsi - v
Ms. Alyazia Naser Yousef Naser Alzaabi - \/

First Meeting

Nomination and Remuneration Committee Members No. of absences 18 Sep 2024
Mrs. Najoud Abdulla Mohammad Burahima - v
Mr. Mansoor Abduljabbar Abdulmohsen Ahmed Alsayegh - \/

Ms. Alyazia Naser Yousef Naser Alzaabi - v
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4.3 Insider Trading Supervision Committee

¢ Insider Trading Supervision functions

In implementation of the decision of the Chairman of the Authority No. (03/ ) of 2020 on the adoption of the Corporate
Governance Manual of Public Joint Stock Companies, the Management of the Company assigned the Insiders’ affairs
and their trading in the Company’s shares and securities to the Compliance and Corporate Governance officer, since
the committee was not formed due to the lack of a quorum of members. . In addition, the Management of the
Company identified the duties and competencies of such Department represented in the following:

The company's management referred the insiders' affairs and their trading in the company's shares and the securities
issued by it to the compliance officer, since the committee was not formed due to the lack of a quorum of members.
Accordingly, the company's management determined the tasks and powers assigned to the compliance officer, which
are as follows:

- Management, follow-up and supervision of the insiders’ transactions and ownerships, and maintaining their record.

- Development of a special and integrated record that includes the insiders’ names and details, including persons who
may be considered as temporary insiders and those who have access to the Company’s internal information prior to
publication.

- Quarterly review of the records and lists of the insiders for continuous update, and consultation with the Executive
Management on any updates required to such records and lists according to the requirements of the business of the
Company.

- Ensuring continuous update of the list of insiders on the Abu Dhabi Securities Exchange website and making any
updates to such list as soon as it occurs.

- Submission of periodic reports and statements to Securities and Commodities Authority and Abu Dhabi Securities
Exchange.

- Any other competencies or tasks delegated to the Committee from time to time by the Board of Directors of the
Company.

It is worth mentioning that the Company is fully committed not to exploit undisclosed or unpublished information
related to the business of the Company and if it has an effect on the Company’s shares price in the financial market.
Additionally, trading by insiders in the Company’s shares is prohibited during the trading prohibition periods imposed
by Securities and Commodities Authority and Abu Dhabi Securities Exchange to ensure continuous compliance with
the applicable laws and regulations.

4.4 Other committees approved by the Board of Directors

No other committees approved by the Board of Directors of Aram Group Company were formed during the fiscal year
2024.
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4.5 The responsibilities and authorities carried out by the Executive Management based on a mandate
from the Board of Directors

The Aram Group’s Board of Directors has adopted a policy that enables and empowers the governance process,
including that members of the executive management pay special attention to the duties entrusted to them. The
Board has delegated certain levels of powers to each of the following:

Administrative, operational, and financial authorities

Ali Musmar - CEQO for ARAM Group Company. 3 years
Full authority to reach the highest occupancy rate for
Ali Musmar - CEO the company’s buildings by repricing at competitive As needed

prices.

The Chief Executive Officer has the authority to act within the framework of the operational plan and the budget of
operating income and expenses discussed and approved by the Board, according to the authorities granted thereto
under the Delegations of Authority. The Chief Executive Officer may delegate some of his duties to the Executive
Management Team, according to the current policies of the Board, Delegations of Authority and legal requirements
which determine the powers of such delegation. The validity of responsibilities and duties vested in the Chief
Executive Officer is three (3) renewable years.

4.6 Business Transactions with related Parties

There are no transactions with related parties within the scope of the governance during the year 2024.
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5.0 Board of Directors Evaluation

Evaluation of the Board of Directors of Aram Group Company, its Committees, and Executive Management.

5.1 Annual Evaluation of the Performance of the Company's Board of Directors, its Members, and
Committees.

The annual evaluation of the performance of the company’s Board of Directors, its members, and committees is one
of the key tools that contribute to enhancing corporate performance and promoting robust governance practices.
The purpose of this evaluation is to assess the Board's effectiveness in making strategic decisions and executing
policies designed to achieve the company's objectives. Additionally, the individual performance of Board members is
evaluated, focusing on their competencies, contributions, and adherence to ethical and professional standards. The
performance of Board committees, such as the Audit Committee and the Nomination and Remuneration Committee,
is also assessed to ensure effective coordination in their tasks and compliance with the highest standards of
transparency. Since the company is listed on the Abu Dhabi Securities Exchange (ADX), it upholds the highest
governance standards to ensure the provision of a transparent and objective report on the evaluation outcomes,
thereby fostering shareholder confidence and demonstrating the company’s commitment to sustainable growth.

Accordingly, in 2024, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee undertook the responsibility of evaluating the
performance of the Board of Directors and its committees, following a set of systematic procedures aimed at
ensuring the highest standards of governance and transparency. These procedures include:

¢ A comprehensive evaluation of the individual performance of Board members, based on specific criteria
including professional competence, effectiveness in participation, and the ability to make effective strategic
decisions.

¢ An assessment of the performance of the various Board committees, reviewing their ability to achieve their
assigned objectives and evaluating the effectiveness of their operational mechanisms in supporting the
company'’s strategic goals.

¢ Arange of tools, including surveys and assessments conducted with relevant members, are utilized to obtain an
objective evaluation that reflects both collective and individual performance.

¢ Finally, the evaluation results are meticulously analyzed, and comprehensive recommendations are provided to
enhance sustainable performance and ensure alignment with global governance best practices, in accordance
with the standards of the Abu Dhabi Securities Exchange (ADX) and industry-leading practices.

5.2 The evaluation of the Board of Directors, its members, and committees is conducted by an
independent professional entity.

The Board of Directors is dedicated to maintaining the highest standards of governance and transparency. To
reinforce this commitment, every three years, the Board engages an independent professional firm, with no
affiliations or interests with the company, its Board members, or executive management, to conduct a thorough
evaluation of the Board's performance, individual members, and its committees. The evaluation process
encompasses an assessment of the Board's effectiveness in making strategic decisions, the accountability of
members in fulfilling their duties, as well as the performance of key committees such as the Audit Committee and the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee, and the efficiency of their operational frameworks.

The company applies precise and objective evaluation standards based on best practices in governance to ensure
accurate and actionable results that improve organizational performance and enhance shareholders and
stakeholders’ confidence. In 2024, the company conducted an internal evaluation to support continuous performance
improvement and strengthen governance standards. The Board of Directors is committed to following the necessary
procedures, in compliance with applicable regulations, to engage an independent professional firm for future
evaluations.
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6.0 Organizational Structure and Executive Management of Aram Group Company

6.10rganizational Structure of Aram Group Company

Since its inception, ARAM Group Company has been developing and implementing an efficient and effective
organizational structure at all department and division levels in order to ensure a high-level of coordination and
management interaction, and to ensure a high-level of disclosure, transparency and interaction with markets, which
is reviewed continuously by the Executive Management. The following diagram represents the Company's
Organizational Structure:

Board Of Directors
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6.2 Executive Management Team

The Executive Management Team (which includes the Group Chief Executive Officer and Executive Officers of its
departments and divisions) work according to their authorities specified by the Board of Directors, and within the
approved strategic plan. They are responsible for managing the day-to-day operations of the Company and key
business issues, in line with the strategic plan framework of the Company. The Chief Executive Officer periodically
meets with the Executive Management Team directly.

The following table shows the Members of the Executive Management Team, their appointment dates, salaries and
Remunerations they received during 2024:

- Date of Total Salaries .'zmc.l Total Bonuses paid for P B et e
Fosition Appointment Allowances paid in 2024 202 for 2024 or due in the future
i (AED) (AED)

Chief Executive Officer 10/10/2021 1,200,000 - -

General Manager 03/02/1979 432,000 - -

Chief Accountant 01/08/2022 166,500 - -

Real Estate Manager 04/11/2006 201,600 - -

Cor'porate Governance Senior 01/10/2024 48,000 _ B

Officer

7.0 External Auditor

7.1 An overview of the company’s auditor for shareholders

Based on the nominations of the Audit Committee, the Board of Directors nominates the auditor to the General
Assembly to approve his appointment after verifying his independence, competence and reputation for a period of
one year. Accordingly, the auditor will assume his duties from the end of the Assembly Meeting until the end of the
Assembly Meeting of the following year. His fees are determined by a decision of the General Assembly, and he is
prohibited from carrying out other accounting work related to accounting records. He is also prohibited from
designing or implementing any information systems if they have a substantial influence on the financial data or
control systems related thereto or to provide any services or internal audit works by subcontract.

Furthermore, he is forbidden to provide any valuation or appraisal work for the company during the audit process or
participate therein, as well as to provide any administrative services or work related to financial or real estate
brokerage.

Accordingly, it was contracted with Crowe Mak, a member of the International Crowe Mak Company, which has
experience for more than 40 years in the United Arab Emirates and one of the largest audit and consulting companies
worldwide with firm presence at the international and local levels, providing independent and objective opinions in
line with the methodologies and processes arising at the global level in the application of accounting standards.
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7.2 Fees and costs of the services provided by the External Auditor:

The following table shows the services provided by the External Auditor during 2024 and the fees charged for these
services:

Name of Audit Firm Crowe Mak

Name of Partner Auditor Dr. Khalid Maniar

Number of years spent as an external auditor of the Company 2 Year

Number of years spent by the Partner Auditor in auditing the

Company’s Accounts 2 Year
Total audit fees for the financial statements for the year ended on Aram Group Company AED 87,500+VAT
December 31, 2024 (AED) Tarfan General Trading KWD 1,000+VAT
Details and nature of other services provided by the external auditor

o N/A
during the year 2024
Fees and costs for special services other than the audited financial

N/A

statements of year 2024
Statement of other services provided by an external auditor other than N/A

the company’s auditor during 2024

7.3 Reservations that the company auditor included in the interim and annual financial statements for
the year 2024

The Company's auditor did not submit any reservations regarding the interim and/or annual financial statements of
the Company during 2024.

8.0 Internal Control System

8.1Board of Directors’ Responsibility for the Internal Control System

The Board of Directors is responsible for supervision of the Company's Internal Control System and reviewing its
adequacy, effectiveness, and efficiency. In addition, the Board formed the Audit Committee and appointed the
Compliance and Corporate Governance Officer to contribute to the performance of governance responsibilities that
fall under its responsibility. In addition, the Board of Directors authorized and delegated the Audit Committee and the
Compliance Officer the responsibility of conducting audit and internal review operations independently and regularly
and submitting recommendations to the Board of Directors in a manner that ensures the effectiveness, improvement
and development of the company’s internal control and governance processes.

8.2 Internal Control In-charge’s Profile

No director has been appointed for the Internal Control Department, and internal control tasks have been entrusted
to the Audit Committee and the Compliance Officer. The audits are executed using a methodology for evaluating the
design and effectiveness of internal controls to ensure that risks are adequately addressed, and processes are
operated efficiently.
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8.3 Compliance Officer

As explained in clause (4.3) of this Report, The Compliance Officer has been appointed by virtue of a decision issued
by the Board of Directors who is responsible for ensuring compliance by the Company and its employees with the
issued laws, regulations and decisions, as well as other internal policies and measures. This step was under the
decision of the Chairman of the Authority No. (03/ RM) of 2020 on the adoption of the Corporate Governance Manual
of Public Joint Stock Companies.

Name of the Compliance Officer Qualifications Date of Appointment

Farah Nabel Alsuliman Aldaher Bachelors’in business administration 010ctober 2024

8.4 Company’s Dealing with Material Issues or Problems Disclosed in the Annual Accounts and Reports
The Board of Directors has established standards and principles of internal control in the Company, which aim to
provide objective, independent and reliable advice, as well as an ideal work environment that meets the requirements
of the Board of Directors and contributes to enhancing the role of the Board of Directors, the Audit Committee and
the Compliance officer, in order to contribute to the proper performance of their duties, functions and
responsibilities in accordance with the decision of the Chairman of the Authority No.(03/RM ) of 2020 on the adoption
of the Corporate Governance Manual of Public Joint Stock Companies to achieve the objectives of the Company and
keep up with its aspirations.

During the year 2024, no significant operational internal control failures were identified, and the company did not face
any material issues. However, process level improvements were identified and accepted by management for
implementation towards the continuous improvement of internal controls of the company.

9.0 Violations committed by the Company during 2024

During 2024, The Company did not commit any material violations imposed by SCA or any statutory authority on any
matter related to capital markets. Additionally, there have been no cases of material non-compliance with any
applicable rules and regulations.

10.0 Statement of the cash and in-kind contributions made by Aram Group Company during the year
2024 towards the development of the local community and the preservation of the environment.

ARAM Group Company aims to leverage our people and community efforts towards solving real social and
environmental challenges, deliver positive impacts for all, and shape communities that thrive now and into the future.
Through its social responsibility, ARAM aims at creating sustainable value for shareholders, employees, suppliers,
customers, business partners and the communities in which it operates. It supports local communities through a
blend of volunteering, charitable donations, sponsorships, education projects, and healthcare initiatives, among
others.

ARAM has hired an external consultant to assist the Board in the development of a Sustainability Report for 2024.
Details about the sustainability initiatives are provided in ARAM’s Environmental, Social and Governance report.
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11.0 General Information

11.1Company’s Share Performance during 2024

Trading in the Company’s shares witnessed strong activity during the year 2023. The following table provides an
overview of the Company’s share price at the end of each month of the year ended on December 31, 2024:

Highest Lowest

Date Opening Price Price Closing Quantity No. of

(Month) (AED) (AED) (AED) (AED) (Share) Transactions

Jan 2024 3.100 3.890 3.000 3.650 51,609 881,541.920 97 17.742 0.550
Feb 2024 3.650 3.660 3.020 3.050 70,039 42,478,201.630 | 49 (16.438) (0.600)
Mar 2024 3.40 3.140 2.700 2.970 27,433 12,244,848.440 | 23 (2.623) (0.080)
Apr 2024 2.690 2.990 2.690 2.860 286,213 15,190,319.890 [ 25 (3.704) (0.110)
May 2024 2.600 3.170 2.400 2.940 5,627 204,474.010 28 2.797 0.080
Jun 2024 3.000 3.000 2.660 2.890 430,052 117,218.000 15 (1.701) (0.050)
Jul 2024 2.610 2.800 2.290 2.500 573,139 135,332.120 66 (13.495) (0.390)
Aug 2024 2.340 2.480 1.920 2.250 42,299 100,14.670 70 (10.000) (0.250)
Sep 2024 2.180 2.850 1.860 2.630 25,095,086 | 10,095,978.900 | 121 16.889 0.380
Oct 2024 2.630 2.690 2.040 2.300 1,197,359 408,960.320 98 (12.548) (0.330)
Nov 2024 2.360 2.500 1.890 1.890 4,960,465 254,050.160 82 (17.826) (0.410)
Dec 2024 1.980 2.100 1.720 1.940 13,339 252,895.350 87 2.646 0.050

Source : Abu Dhabi Securities Exchange
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11.2 Comparative Performance of ARAM Group Company'’s share with the General Market Index and
Sector Index during 2024

The following table shows the comparative performance of the Company’s share with the general market index and
the real estate sector index during the year ended on December 31, 2024:

Month General Market Index % Sector Index % Company Share Price%
Jan 2024 (0.73) (2.57) 17.742
Feb 2024 (2.67) 5.92 (16.438)
Mar 2024 (0.29) 0.47 (2.623)
Apr 2024 (1.74) (1.84) (3.704)
May 2024 (2.26) (0.14) 2.797
June 2024 2.24 11.06 (1.701)
July 2024 3.07 16.00 (13.495)
Aug 2024 (0.58) (0.61) (10.000)
Sep 2024 1.51 3.43 16.889
Oct 2024 (1.04) 1.35 (12.548)
Nov 2024 (1.00) (1.88) (17.826)
Dec 2024 1.99 2.15 2.846

Source : Abu Dhabi Securities Exchange
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11.3 Statement of Distribution of Shareholders’ Ownership as on December 31, 2024 (Individuals -
Companies - Governments), categorized as follows: (Local - GCC - Arabic - Foreign)

The following table shows the distribution of shareholder's ownership in ARAM Group Company (Individuals -
Companies - Governments) categorized as follows: (Local - GCC - Arabic - Foreign)as on December 31, 2024:

Percentage of shares owned %

Shareholder’s classification

Individuals Companies Governments
1 Local 13% 18% 0% 31%
2 GCC 36% 14% 1% 51%
3 Arabs 1% 0% 0% 1%
4 Foreigners 17% 0% 0% 17%
Total 67% 32% 1% 100%

1.4 Shareholders whose Ownership Percentage exceeds 5% of the Company’s Capital as on December
31,2024

The following table shows the shareholders whose ownership percentage exceeds 5% of the Company’s capital as on
December 31, 2024:

Shareholder No. of Owned Shares Ownership Percentage %

Ziyad Mahmoud Khairallah Alhaji Alharmouzi | 6,319,890 8.01%

Fouad Abdel Hadi Mohammed Mashal 5,466,820 6.93%

Salem Abdullah Salem AlHosni 3,191,238 4.04%

AlSalem Limited Company 2,300,000 2.92%

As the shareholder Salem Abdullah Salem AlHosni owns a controlling percentage in AlSalem Limited Company, the combined ownership percentage is
more than 5%.

11.5 Statement of Distribution of Shareholders according to their Ownership Percentage as on
December 31, 2024

The following table shows the distribution of shareholders according to their ownership percentage as on December
31,2024:

Owned Shares Percentage

Shares Ownership (Share) No. of Shareholders No. of Owned Shares of the Capital
1 Less than 50,000 1,065 34,741 0.04%
2 From 50,000 to less than 500,000 7,208 35,137,510 44.53%
3 From 500,000 to less than 5,000,000 23 31,942,125 40.48%
4 More than 5,000,000 2 11,786,710 14.94%
Total 8,298 78,901,086 100%
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11.6 Controls of Investors Relationships with the Listed Companies

According to the decision of the Chairman of the Securities and Commodities Authority No. (7/ ) of 2016 on standards
of institutional discipline and governance of Public Joint Stock Companies, along with the amended laws, and the
circular issued by the Authority on the controls of investor relationships with listed companies, and on the basis of
ARAM's keenness on the optimal application of the applicable rules and regulations in this regard, the Company, has
appointed officials specialized in investor relationships management, who have the required qualifications and
experiences in the fields of business, accounting and public relations, and full knowledge of the Company’s activities,
and are familiar with the relevant legal and legislative requirements of the relevant authorities With the aim of
implementing all the primary and secondary requirements of the company’s Investors and raising the consistency and
quality in responding to external inquiries of investors and shareholders, in addition to strengthening the Company’s
investment relations and market linkages, as well as enhancing the knowledge and awareness of the stakeholders
and their understanding of the data related to the company’s performance through the application and enforcement
of the best ways to communicate with the Company.

Therefore, the Company has developed and updated its Investor Relations Department website in accordance with
the Securities and Commodities Authority’s applicable requirements and controls of investor relations management,
in an efficient and effective manner. The shareholders, investors, stakeholders and the public can visit this website
through the following links:

https://aramgroup.ae/overview/

The following table shows the details and contact information of the Investor Relations Officer:

Investor Relation Officer Ms. Sharihan Abou Mosleh

Contact Information
Telephone +9716 5565570/ +97150 7009304
Fax +9716 5565572
P.0.Box 5440 Sharjah
Email sharihan.z@aramgroup.ae
Address Al Khan- Al Sharjah, United Arab Emirates

11.7 Special Decisions taken in the General Assembly Meetings of Shareholders during 2024, and Actions
taken in respect thereof.

In accordance with the applicable laws and regulations, the special decision is the decision issued by a majority vote
of shareholders who own at least three quarters of the shares represented in the General Assembly meeting of the
joint stock Company.

¢ ARAM Group Company Annual General Assembly Meeting held on 22nd April 2024:
No special decisions were taken during the Annual General Assembly Meeting held on 22nd April 2023

11.8 The rapporteur of the company’s Board of Directors meetings and the date of his appointment

ARAM Group, its Board of Directors and Executive Management believe in the role played by the Company rapporteur
of the Board of Directors’ meetings in organizing the work of the Board of Directors and its Committees. Further, his
role includes ongoing coordination of matters and issues relating to the meetings of the Board and its Committees,
from scheduling meetings’, organizing the agenda, organization and coordination between the Members before and
during the meetings, preparing their minutes, arranging for the signature and adoption thereof. Furthermore, the
Company Rapporteur’s role in coordination of communication among the different Departments of the Company in
relation to resolutions issued by the Board and its Committees, is to ensure the optimal implementation of such
resolutions according to the applicable laws, regulations and resolutions.

Rapporteur of Board of Directors meetings Date of Appointment

Mr. Abdulrahman Abdulla Al Mahmood 13 May 1998
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11.9 Material Events that the company encountered during 2024

+ Resignation of the Chairman of the Board of Directors on January 30, 2024.

The Chairman of the Board of Directors, Mr. Ahmed Ali Abdulaziz Al Sarkal, submitted his resignation for personal
reasons on January 30, 2024. Consequently, a Board meeting was held on February 20, 2024, to elect Mr. Khamis
Mohamed Khamis Buharoon Alshamsi as the new Chairman of the Board of Directors and to appoint Mrs. Najoud
Abdulla Mohammad Burahima as a Board member for the vacant position. Additionally, the Audit Committee and the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee were restructured.

« Resignation of a Board member on August 13, 2024.

The Board member, Mr. Ziyad Mahmoud Khairallah Alhaji Alharmouzi, submitted his resignation for personal reasons
on August 13, 2024. In compliance with the directives of the Securities and Commodities Authority, the position will
remain vacant until the next General Assembly meeting. Nominations will be open to elect a member for the vacant
position at the first General Assembly meeting, and the new member will complete the term of their predecessor, in
accordance with Article 145 of Federal Decree-Law No.(32) of 2021 concerning commercial companies.

11.10 Statement of transactions conducted by the Company during 2024 which is equivalent to 5% or
more from the Company’s capital.

ARAM Group Company didn't conclude any deals amounting to 5% or more from the Company’s capital during 2024.

11.11 Emiratization Percentage in the Company for the years 2022, 2023 and 2024

The Emiratization rate in Aram Group Company is zero during the years 2022, and 2023.

In 2024, in alignment with the strategic vision of our leadership to promote the employment of national talent and in
compliance with Cabinet Decision No. (33/5 W) of 2023, which broadens the scope of Emiratization targets to include
entities with 20 to 49 employees, Aram Group successfully achieved a Emiratization rate of 3.7%. The details are
outlined as follows:

Number of employees Emirati employees Non- Emirati employees Total
Total 1 26 27
Percentage (Ratio) 3.7% 96.3% 100%

11.12 Projects and Innovative initiatives performed by the Company during 2024

The company did not undertake any innovative projects or initiatives during 2024.

Mr. Khamis Buharoon Alshamsi Mr. Mansoor Abduljabbar Alsayegh Mrs. Najoud Abdulla Burahima

Chairman Chairman of Audit Committee Chairman of Nomination &
Remuneration Committee
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Leadership Message

Message from the
Chairman

Dear Stakeholders, ‘{fn

At Aram Group, we believe that businesses have a responsibility beyond financial success—they
must also drive positive change in society and the environment. As we continue our journey, we
remain committed to integrating sustainability into every aspect of our operations, ensuring
that our growth is responsible, inclusive, and future-focused.

The past year has been a testament to our resilience and dedication to sustainable progress.
We have reduced our fuel consumption by 68.57%, implemented energy-efficient solutions,
and deepened our engagement with local suppliers. These initiatives are just the begin- ning—
we are setting ambitious goals to further reduce our carbon footprint by 30% by 2030 and to
achieve a50% transition to renewable energy.

Our commitment to people is equally strong. We invest in our employees' well-being, maintain a
safe and inclusive workplace, and support local economic growth by ensuring that 100% of our
senior management positions are filled by local talent.

Governance remains a cornerstone of our strategy. Through transparent reporting, strong
ethics, and compliance with UAE and international ESG standards, we continue to enhance
stakeholder trust.

The journey ahead is ambitious, but with innovation, collaboration, and purpose-driven leader-
ship, we are confident in our ability to create lasting value for our stakeholders, our communi-
ties, and the planet.

Mr. Khamis Mohamed Khamis Buharoon Alshamsi,
Chairman
Aram Group

Page1
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Leadership Message

Message from CEO

Dear Stakeholders,

At Aram Group, our journey has always been about progress—progress in business, in sustain-
ability, and in the way we contribute to the communities we serve. As we navigate an evolving
global landscape, we remain steadfast in our mission to integrate environmental, social, and
governance (ESG) principles into the very core of our operations.

Sustainability is no longer a choice—it is an imperative. Our efforts in energy efficiency, carbon
footprint reduction, and responsible resource management have already yielded measurable
impact, and we continue to push the boundaries of what is possible. We are proud to have
achieved significant reductions in fuel consumption and emissions while reinforcing our posi-
tion as an industry leader in ethical and sustainable business practices.

Equally important is our commitment to our people and communities. We believe in fostering
an inclusive work environment that champions diversity, safety, and professional growth. Our
approach to local hiring, supplier engagement, and community development is driven by a deep
sense of responsibility and the belief that true success is shared success.

As we look ahead, our focus remains on innovation, operational excellence, and sustainability.
We will continue to challenge ourselves, collaborate with stakeholders, and set new bench-
marks for responsible business practices. The path forward is ambitious, but together, we are
shaping a future that is resilient, inclusive, and sustainable.

Thank you for your trust and partnership.
Mr. Ali Musmar

CEO
Aram Group,

Page 2
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Leadership Message

Message from our Compliance &
Corporate Governance Officer

Dear Partners, Colleagues, and Stakeholders,

The world is at a critical juncture where sustainability is no longer a mere ambition but an abso-
lute necessity. At Aram Group, we recognize our responsibility to drive meaningful change by
embedding ESG considerations into every aspect of our business strategy.

Over the past year, we have made significant strides in reducing our environmental footprint,
advancing social responsibility, and strengthening governance. Our carbon reduction initia-
tives, water conservation efforts, and ethical supply chain practices are more than just compli-
ance measures—they reflect our commitment to making a tangible difference.

Transparency and accountability remain at the heart of our sustainability journey. Our rigorous
reporting standards ensure that we are continuously evaluating our impact, identifying areas for
improvement, and setting ambitious targets for the future.

Sustainability is not a destination but an ongoing pursuit of excellence. We are committed to
working closely with our partners, employees, and communities to accelerate progress toward
a more sustainable, equitable, and prosperous world.

We invite you to join us on this journey as we redefine the role of business in shaping a better
future.

Farah Al Daher,

Compliance & Corporate Governance Officer
Aram Group

Page 3
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About the Report

ESG standards and the frameworks the company has adopted

At Aram Group, our commitment to sustainability is embedded in our business strategy and
guided by globally recognized ESG frameworks. These frameworks provide a structured
approach to evaluating our environmental, social, and governance impact, ensuring we meet
both international best practices and UAE-specific regulatory requirements.

1. Global Reporting Initiative (GRI) Standards

Aram Group follows the GRI Standards, the world's most widely used framework for sustainabil-
ity reporting. This enables us to disclose our economic, environmental, and social perfor-
mance transparently. Our report is structured around GRI's principles, ensuring consistency in
measuring key ESG factors and aligning with stakeholder expectations.

2. UAE ESG Regulations and National Vision 2050
As an entity operating in the UAE, Aram Group aligns its sustainability initiatives with the coun-
try’'s strategic goals, including:

o UAE Net Zero by 2050 - supporting national decarbonization efforts.

e [DubaiIntegrated Energy Strategy 2030 - optimizing energy consumption and improving
energy efficiency.

e UAE Circular Economy Policy - reducing waste and promoting sustainable resource use.

« Abu Dhabi Sustainable Finance Guidelines - ensuring responsible investment & financial
sustainability.

3. Greenhouse Gas (GHG) Protocol

To monitor and reduce our carbon footprint, we apply the GHG Protocol, the global standard for
measuring and managing greenhouse gas emissions. We track our Scope 1and Scope 2 emis-
sions and are working toward assessing Scope 3 to strengthen our climate impact reduction
strategy.

Commitment to Continuous Improvement

We recognize that sustainability is a continuous journey. Aram Group is committed to reqularly
evaluating and updating our ESG strategies, ensuring compliance with evolving requlations and
enhancing our impact across environmental, social, and governance dimensions.

Page 4
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ESG Highlights

Aram Group has achieved significant milestones in sustainability over the past year, reinforcing
our commitment to responsible growth. Some of our key ESG achievements include:

Environmental Impact
e 68.57% reduction in fuel consumption, eliminating diesel usage across operations.

e 30.42% reduction in water consumption, optimizing efficiency through advanced track-
ing.
Commitment to a 30% reduction in carbon emissions by 2030.

95% waste diversion efforts, with initiatives to enhance recycling and reduce inorganic
waste.

Social Impact

¢ 100% of senior management hires from the local community, fostering economic
growth.

e 87.65% of procurement spending directed to local suppliers, strengthening regional
businesses.

Zero workplace fatalities and a strong commitment to employee health, safety, and
training programs.

Continuous focus on gender diversity, equal opportunity policies, and workforce
engagement.

Governance & Ethics

e Full compliance with GRI, UAE ESG requlations, ISO 14001, ISO 45001, and ISO 50001.
e Zero confirmed incidents of corruption, with robust ethics and anti-corruption policies.

« Strengthened tax transparency and responsible financial governance practices.

Looking forward, we are accelerating investments in renewable energy, expanding ESG data
tracking, and enhancing stakeholder engagement to further elevate our impact.
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About the Company

Our Purpose
At Aram Group, we are driven by a purpose beyond profitability—creating sustainable solutions
that enhance communities, protect the environment, and drive economic progress.

Our company is built on three fundamental pillars:

« Sustainable Development: Aligning our operations with UAE's Vision 2050 and global
sustainability standards to drive green innovation & responsible resource management.
Social Responsibility: Investing in local talent, ethical supply chains, and community
development initiatives, ensuring that our growth positively impacts society.
Operational Excellence & Governance: Maintaining the highest standards of corporate
integrity, transparency, and regulatory compliance, ensuring long-term business resil-
ience and stakeholder trust.

Our vision is to lead the industry in ESG best practices, leveraging technology, partnerships,
and a purpose-driven strategy to deliver sustainable value for generations to come.
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Our ESG Approach
Key Stakeholder Issues

o Employees - Ensuring workplace safety, career development, and well-being.

e Customers - Delivering sustainable, high-quality solutions that meet ethical standards.
« Investors - Providing transparent disclosures and strong financial governance.

¢ Regulators - Complying with UAE environmental and social governance laws.

o Communities - Supporting local economic development and responsible business
practices.

Page 7
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Environment

In our journey towards sustainability, Aram Group Company has made notable strides in
enhancing our environmental impact, marked by significant achievements in energy efficiency,
water conservation, emissions reduction, and waste management. Our commitment to ESG
principles is underpinned by rigorous adherence to recognized standards such as GRI, ISO, and
the Greenhouse Gas Protocol, ensuring our efforts are both impactful and transparent to our
stakeholders.

On the energy front, we have seen a transformative shift in our consumption patterns, achiev-
ing a notable 68.57% reduction in total fuel usage from 2023 to 2024. This reduction reflects our
robust energy management strategies, which include the implementation of energy-effi- cient
lighting and HVAC systems, alongside a complete phase-out of diesel fuel within our facil- ity
boundaries. While these achievements are commendable, our journey does not end here. We
recognize the need for ongoing improvements, particularly in reducing our reliance on natural
gas and exploring renewable energy alternatives to align even more closely with indus- try
standards.

Our water conservation efforts have also yielded significant results, with a 30.42% decrease in
water consumption. By leveraging direct measurements and cross-verification with historical
data, we ensure accurate and reliable tracking of our water usage. This success not only reduc-
es operational costs but also supports local communities by preserving vital ecosystems. How-
ever, we must remain vigilant to potential challenges such as local water scarcity that could
impact both our operations and broader community relations.

Our ongoing commitment to reducing carbon emissions by 30% by 2030 is unwavering, and we
continue to invest in renewable energy sources and employee training on sustainable practices
to drive further improvements.

In crafting our environmental narrative, we remain committed to transparency and account-
ability, acknowledging both our achievements and the areas requiring further attention. We
aim to continue evolving our ESG initiatives to not only meet but exceed industry standards,
fostering sustainable growth for both our company and the communities in which we operate.
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Energy Commitment

Aram Group Company adheres to global benchmarks like GRI Standards, ISO 50001, and the
Greenhouse Gas Protocol. We use advanced tools to monitor and manage energy
consumption, ensuring accurate and transparent accounting.

We achieved a 68.57% reduction in total fuel consumption from 2023 to 2024, eliminating
diesel fuel usage and reducing expenditures significantly. Our goal is to reduce energy require-
ments by 10% through innovative design improvements and energy-efficient technologies.

While our energy practices contribute to economic growth and job creation, we remain vigilant
about potential environmental and health impacts. By 2030, we aim to reduce our carbon foot-
print by 30% and transition to 50% renewable energy.

Concrete actions include implementing energy efficiency measures, investing in renewables,
and conducting environmental assessments. We prioritize community partnerships and
employee training on sustainable practices.

Annual audits reveal decreased emissions and increased uptake of renewable sources, foster-
ing trust and collaboration with stakeholders through sustainability reports, meetings, and
website updates.

Electricity Consumption (Kwh)

423691.00 Kwh 166070.00 Kwh 124005.00 Kwh
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Carbon Emissions Commitment
Aram Group Company is dedicated to reducing our
carbon footprint and contributing to a sustainable
future. We have implemented strategic actions to
manage our Scope 1, Scope 2, and Scope 3 green-
house gas (GHG) emissions, achieving a 10% reduc-
tion in overall emissions. This milestone reflects
our commitment to effective and sustainable prac-
tices.

Our efforts extend to managing significant air emis-
sions, such as nitrogen oxides (NOx), sulfur oxides
(SOx), and other pollutants, minimizing their impact
on air quality around our operations.

We are proud of our progress but remain focused on
the journey ahead. Teamwork, transparency, and
excellence drive our emissions management prac-
tices. We aim to exceed international standards for
emissions reduction through collaboration with
industry partners, adoption of new technologies,
and arelentless focus on sustainability.

Petrol Fuel consumed within Facility boundary, ie. Transportation vehicles

owned by ARAM

7650 glns 5540 glns

6400 glns
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Waste Management Commitment

Aram Group Company is focused on evolving its environmental strategy, with waste manage-
ment as a critical area. In 2024, organic waste comprised 5% of our total waste, highlighting
the early stage of organic waste management within our operations. Inorganic waste
accounted for 95%, indicating the need for intensified recycling efforts and sustainable
practices.

Our initial steps towards organic waste management pave the way for more robust procedures
aimed at increasing the share of organic waste relative to inorganic waste. We are committed to
advancing our waste management framework to reduce overall waste production and meet
industry benchmarks effectively.
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Water Consumption Commitment

Aram Group Company is committed to sustainability and responsible resource management,
with water consumption as a pivotal part of our environmental governance. Guided by GRI Stan-
dards and ISO 14046, we pursue water efficiency by accurately assessing and managing the
impacts of our water usage across economic, environmental, and social dimensions.

We achieved a 30.42% reduction in water consumption from 301,786 Itrs in 2023 to 210,000 Itrs
in 2024. This success underscores our effective water management strategies and aligns with
our commitment to reducing operational costs and supporting local economies. Our methodi-
cal approach includes sector-specific factors, regional water scarcity, and precise assess-
ments using direct measurements and calibrated water meters.

Our water management strategies exemplify sustainable practice, continuously refined
through analysis against industry benchmarks. We are dedicated to transparency and account-
ability, ensuring sustainable resource use for the future. This commitment reflects our broader
environmental stewardship and the shared value we aim to create for all stakeholders

Total Water Consumption (Litres)

2022 2023 2024
s & &

525012.00 Litres 301786.00 Litres 315020.0 Litres
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Social

Aram Group Company ESG Report

Aram Group Company is proud to share its strides in the social segment of our ESG journey,
underscoring our commitment to sustainable & ethical practices across suppliers,
employees, community, and customers.

Supplier Engagement Commitment

Our supplier engagement strateqy prioritizes regional suppliers, with a commendable 87.65% of
our procurement spending in 2024 directed towards local entities, amounting to 1,744,536 AED.
This decision reinforces our support for local economic growth and minimizes environ- mental
impacts through reduced transportation needs. Our vendor due diligence and compli- ance
standards ensure fair labour conditions and ethical sourcing, aligning with our transpar- ency
and sustainability policies.

Employee Commitment

Within our workforce, the implementation of robust Occupational Health and Safety Manage-
ment Systems ensures a safe environment, evidenced by zero fatalities and no recordable
injury incidents. Offering a suite of development programs, we are committed to nurturing our
employees' growth. The demographic composition of our workforce, predominantly male with
a representation of 24 males to 5 females, mirrors areas for improved gender diversity, espe-
cially considering the turnover trends. Our governance body reflects a balanced gender repre-
sentation, with a need to extend this balance to our broader workforce.
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Social

Customer Health and Safety Commitment

In the past year, we ensured zero incidents of non-compliance with health and safety requla-
tions, reinforcing our adherence to standards and safeguarding clients. Our proactive
approach includes mechanisms for consumer complaints via email, mobile app, or direct con-
tact, facilitating voluntary recalls and safety updates. In urgent cases, we executed forced
recalls, prioritizing tenant safety through temporary relocations and property repairs.

We evaluated 78.26% of our product and service categories for health and safety impacts,
assessing 18 out of 23. Our goal is to achieve 100% assessment, aiming for a 15% reduction
in safety incidents and full compliance.

Customer Privacy Commitment

Our vigilant cybersecurity measures resulted in zero substantiated complaints or breaches.
Supported by reqgular audits and staff training, our comprehensive policy enhances data
protection and strengthens stakeholder trust. We aim for zero data breaches and a 20%
increase in customer satisfaction, maintaining transparency through reports, newsletters,
and public awareness campaigns.

Positive Outcomes

The absence of complaints and non-compliance incidents positions us favourably compared to
industry benchmarks, reflecting effective customer engagement and regulatory compliance.
We recognize the need for full evaluation of our products and services to uphold the highest
safety and privacy standards.

Ongoing Efforts

In a landscape of evolving customer expectations and regulatory requirements, our efforts
focus on maintaining a strong foundation in safety and privacy. This journey is supported by
a culture of accountability and commitment to excellence, ensuring we meet and exceed
indus- try standards.
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Social

Community Engagement Commitment

Community engagement is integral to our strategy, especially in urban and suburban settings
focused on affordable housing and commercial development. By embedding ourselves within
the communities we serve, we have driven economic growth, improved infrastructure, and
enhanced access to affordable housing. However, our industry also presents challenges such
as temporary disruptions, displacement risks, and potential increases in the cost of living.

As of 2024, 100% of our senior management hires are sourced from the local community,
reflecting our dedication to local employment and community development. This initiative
fosters leadership roles within the community & provides a platform for local talent to flourish.

Our partnerships with local authorities & NGOs facilitate comprehensive mitigation strategies,
including relocation assistance & community outreach initiatives. Our Community Engage-
ment Policy and Social Impact Strategy ensure early-stage dialogue with local communities
and the execution of Social Impact Assessments, integrating sustainability into our projects.

To address potential negative impacts, we engage in preventive actions such as inclusive com-
munity consultations and environmental mitigation measures. When adverse impacts cannot be
avoided, we implement rehabilitation, resettlement, and community compensation programs,
transforming challenges into opportunities for growth. Ongoing monitoring helps refine these
processes and maximize effectiveness.

Quantitative metrics highlight our success in leadership sourcing, while qualitative engage-
ment fosters community ownership and trust. Stakeholders express high satisfaction with
our transparent and inclusive communication through website updates, community
meetings, newsletters, and social media.

Our dedication to community engagement remains unwavering. We are committed to learning
and adapting, ensuring our contributions enrich the social fabric of the communities we serve.
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Social

Employee Commitment

Our comprehensive occupational health and safety management system safequards the well-
being of all individuals across our operational sites, ensuring compliance with industry
standards and minimizing workplace risks. The absence of fatalities and recordable incidents of
injury orill health attests to the effectiveness of our safety protocols.

Equal Opportunity and Diversity

Equal opportunity is central to our ethos, supported by a non-discrimination policy and griev-
ance mechanisms for all workforce segments. Our governance structure includes balanced
representation in leadership roles, though wider workforce gender composition needs
improvement, with 24 males and 5 females.

Training and Development

Training and development are pivotal in nurturing a skilled workforce, with robust programs
spanning technical skills, leadership training, and soft skills development. While detailed data
on training hours is unavailable, our commitment to continuous development is unwavering.

Employment and Labour Rights

We ensure labour rights are scrupulously observed, fostering fair wages and job satisfaction. In
the past year, we onboarded three new hires, a mix of genders and age groups, but faced a turn-
over of five employees, warranting immediate attention.

Performance Management

We actively engage in performance management, with 17 employees benefiting from reqular
career development reviews. Opportunities for advancing gender diversity, equitable salary
distribution, and comprehensive parental leave policies are areas for improvement.

Ongoing Efforts

Our aspiration is to craft an environment where safety, diversity, and continuous growth
coalesce in harmony, ensuring our journey in social sustainability is impactful and enduring.
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Social

Supplier Engagement Commitment

In our commitment to sustainability and ethical procurement, Aram Group Company prioritizes
practices that support local economies and promote fair trade. In 2024, we allocated 87.65% of
our procurement spend to local suppliers, investing 1,744,536 AED out of a total budget of
1,990,280 AED. This milestone highlights our dedication to bolstering local economic growth and
minimizing environmental impact through reduced transportation requirements.

Our procurement practices ensure economic contributions while safequarding environmental
and human rights. We engage in sustainable sourcing and waste minimization efforts, mitigat-
ing risks such as environmental degradation and unethical labour practices. Through vendor
due diligence and compliance standards, we ensure responsible supplier engagement, empha-
sizing ethical sourcing, transparency, and sustainability.

Crucial to our strategy is the enforcement of fair labour practices and anti-corruption mea-
sures. Our ethical engagements with suppliers are fortified through preventive actions,
includ- ing supplier screening, sustainable sourcing mandates, and vendor compliance
checks. Sup- porting local businesses aids in regional job creation and fosters stronger
community relation- ships.

To gauge the effectiveness of these initiatives, we rely on comprehensive supplier perfor-
mance assessments, audit reports, and specific sustainability KPIs. This approach maintains
high compliance rates and achieves cost efficiency while meeting ambitious sustainability
benchmarks. Despite successes, we recognize the need for improvement in enhancing supplier
diversity and nurturing innovation within sustainability practices.

Through stakeholder communication channels such as supplier meetings, sustainability reports,
and training sessions, we enhance transparency and accountability within our supply chain.
These interactions provide valuable insights to refine strategies, strengthen policies, and foster
improved collaboration with stakeholders.

Overall, our procurement practices demonstrate our ambition to lead in sustainable and ethical
supplier management, maintaining a competitive edge while fostering inclusive growth. Vigi-
lance and continual assessment are crucial in light of evolving industry standards and unfore-
seen challenges.
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Aram Group's Clean-up Drive along with Emirates Environmental
Group

Aram Group actively participated in the Clean UAE campaign, a nationwide environmental initiative
led by the Emirates Environmental Group (EEG), reinforcing its commitment to sustainability and
community engagement.

This strategic collaboration aligns with Aram Group’s Environmental, Social, and Governance (ESG)
framework, contributing to national sustainability goals by promoting waste management,
conservation efforts, and corporate social responsibility.

Employees across various divisions volunteered in cleanup activities, demonstrating a hands-on
approach to environmental stewardship.
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Governance

Aram Group’s Governance Report

At Aram Group Company, our dedication to robust governance practices is evident in our
meticulously structured governance framework, designed to drive sustainable success. Our
governance structure is methodically composed, where the highest governance body is nomi-
nated through a transparent and inclusive selection process. The role of this governing body
extends beyond traditional oversight, directly engaging in the rigorous management of our ESG
impacts. Their collective expertise is continually evaluated, ensuring the board's deci- sion-
making processes are well-informed and adaptive to evolving sustainability challenges.

Tax Policy Commitment

Our tax policy exemplifies our commitment to transparency and community contribution. With a
structured strateqgy that aligns tax practices with broader business and sustainability goals, our
approach to tax is not merely about compliance; it is a proactive stance integrating finan- cial
planning and risk management. With our CFO at the helm overseeing tax compliance, we engage
openly with tax authorities and prioritize fair engagement over aggressive lobbying practices.
Notably, we conduct ongoing evaluations through audits and external reviews to ensure our tax
strategy remains robust and ethical.

ESG Governance Commitment

In our ESG governance, we uphold strong policy commitments embedded throughout our oper-
ations, focusing on sustainable development as a quiding principle. We have implemented
processes to remediate any negative impacts and established mechanisms for advice and con-
cerns, ensuring that all voices within the company are heard.
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Governance

Ethics and Compliance Framework

Our ethics and compliance framework are a cornerstone of our organizational integrity, under-
scored by the complete absence of confirmed corruption incidents across all levels in 2024.
This reflects our zero-tolerance policy towards corruption, with a focus on continuous
strengthening through ethics training and stringent compliance measures. While this achieve-
ment highlights our proactive stance, the assessed percentage of operations for corruption
risks indicates room for expansion.

Human Rights Commitment

Human rights remain a priority, demonstrated by our comprehensive policies and the active
role of our Diversity and Inclusion Committee. With mechanisms for grievance reporting and a
solid non-discrimination policy, we strive for an equitable workplace.

Through these practices, Aram Group remains steadfast in advancing our ESG goals, driving
forward with transparency, accountability, and continuous improvement as we address both
our achievements and the challenges that lie ahead.

Board's Commitment to Governance

The governance structure at Aram Group Company stands as a testament to our commitment
to elevating corporate responsibility and enhancing stakeholder value. Our robust governance
framework, meticulously crafted, embodies diversity and inclusivity, drawing upon indus- try-
leading practices to ensure that we remain at the forefront of governance excellence. The
composition of our highest governance body is reflective of this ethos, integrating a broad
range of expertise and experience, thereby equipping us to navigate the evolving challenges of
the real estate sector with confidence and foresight.

Page 23



107 | ESG Report 2024

Governance

Governance Body Composition

Selection and nomination processes for our governance body prioritize transparency and merit.
By adhering to stringent criteria and industry benchmarks, we ensure that individuals chosen to
lead our organization possess not only the necessary qualifications but also the ethi- cal
fortitude to uphold our values. Our chairperson, a distinguished leader recognized for their
unwavering dedication to corporate governance, plays a pivotal role in steering our strategic
vision.

In maintaining the integrity of our governance, the role of the board extends beyond oversight. It
actively participates in delineating the responsibilities delegated to management for the
implementation of our corporate strategy. This division of roles is critical, allowing the highest
governance body to focus on strategic impacts and oversight, while management executes the
tactical initiatives necessary for performance and sustainability. Our governance body is
intimately involved in overseeing the management of impacts, a responsibility it does not take
lightly. The organization’s commitment to sustainability is further illustrated by the proactive
involvement of our board in sustainability reporting, ensuring that our disclosures are both
accurate and reflective of our ongoing efforts.

The collective knowledge within our governance ranks is a formidable asset. This approach
provides a bedrock of informed decision-making, bolstering our ability to respond to dynamic
market conditions and regulatory environments with agility and insight.

Performance Assessments

Evaluating our governance body's performance is an integral practice, underpinning our com-
mitment to accountability. By instituting reqular performance assessments, we identify areas
for growth and development, ensuring that our governance continues to evolve in alignment
with our strategic objectives and stakeholder expectations.

Our governance journey is one of continuous improvement, reflecting a dedication to sustain-
ability, transparency, and accountability that resonates throughout Aram Group Company. As
we look ahead, we remain committed to setting new standards for excellence in governance,
affirming our role as a leader in responsible real estate development in the UAE and beyond.
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Governance

Human Rights Commitment

At Aram Group Company, our commitment to human rights is both a foundational pillar and a
continuous journey, marked by our proactive measures and evolving policies. Recognizing the
importance of human rights within our business operations and supply chain, we've
established a robust framework to address, assess, and ameliorate human rights impacts. Our
implementa- tion of a comprehensive confidential grievance reporting system is a pivotal step
in ensuring that human rights issues are addressed with the seriousness they deserve. This
system, forti- fied by stringent non-retaliation policies, provides a secure channel for
reporting and tackling discrimination, fostering a culture of openness and trust.

Human Rights Training

Our Diversity and Inclusion Committee, alongside the dedicated Human Rights Officer, plays a
vital role in identifying and addressing human rights concerns. By integrating human rights
requirements into business agreements and contracts, we hold ourselves and our partners
accountable to high ethical standards. This is further reinforced by reqular assessments focus-
ing on the risks of child labour, forced labour, and discrimination, ensuring that corrective
actions are timely and effective. Our new onboarding process, which includes human rights
training, is designed to inculcate a deep understanding of these issues among employees from
the outset of their journey with us, promoting a workplace culture rooted in respect & equality.

Grievance Reports

Our efforts to promote non-discrimination revolve around the implementation of an Equal
Opportunity commitment, which is bolstered by reqular training and a clear Non-Discrimina- tion
Policy. While these efforts have led to positive impacts, such as higher engagement and societal
equity, they also mitigate legal risks and systemic inequality. However, challenges in promoting
human rights, particularly in addressing discrimination and harassment or ensuring fair wages,
highlight areas that demand ongoing attention.
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Governance

Ethics & Compliance Commitment

Aram Group Company is committed to ethical conduct and compliance, focusing on minimizing
corruption risks such as conflicts of interest, procurement fraud, and bribery. High-risk areas
are monitored through internal audits, compliance checks, and whistleblower hotlines, rein-
forcing our zero-tolerance policy against corruption.

During the reporting period, no public legal cases related to corruption were initiated against
the organization or its employees. There were zero confirmed incidents of corruption across
all organizational levels, including directors and key management personnel, and no corrup-
tion-related dismissals, disciplinary actions, or contract terminations with business partners.

Our compliance strategy includes rigorous ethics training programs and strengthened whis-
tleblower mechanisms. Approximately 19.81% of our operations were assessed for corrup-
tion-related risks, indicating a proactive approach, though there is room to increase the
breadth of risk evaluations.

We benchmark favourably against industry norms, maintaining a record of zero incidents and
legal actions. Enhancing communication of anti-corruption policies to governance body mem-
bers remains paramount.

Our commitment to high ethical standards is reflected in continuous monitoring and risk
assessment, fostering trust among stakeholders and positioning us as a leader in ethical gover-
nance within the real estate sector. This journey requires constant vigilance and refinement to
adapt to emerging challenges and opportunities.
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Governance

Tax Policy Commitment

Aram Group Company's approach to tax exemplifies our commitment to compliance, transpar-
ency, and sustainability. Our structured tax strategy, overseen by our CFO and executive leader-
ship team, ensures adherence to tax laws and proactive compliance, fostering responsible con-
tributions to the communities we operate in.

Our tax governance integrates tax compliance into broader financial planning and risk manage-
ment frameworks. This includes regular audits, submissions, and regulatory reviews to ensure
accuracy and integrity. Internal channels facilitate stakeholder concerns, offering confidential
reporting and swift resolution.

We maintain open communication with tax authorities, emphasizing fairness and integrity over
aggressive lobbying. Stakeholder concerns are gathered through consultations, meetings, and
forums, demonstrating our proactive engagement strategy.

Our tax practices support public services and enhance organizational integrity. Regular audits
and a governance framework involving external advisors ensure a comprehensive check-and-
balance approach. Detailed reports and disclosures provide transparency into our tax practices,
maintaining trust and upholding high ethical standards.

Through this approach, Aram Group Company fulfils its fiscal responsibilities and contributes
to socio-economic development, reinforcing our role as a responsible corporate citizen. We
remain dedicated to refining our tax practices and governance frameworks to meet and exceed
stakeholder expectations.
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Conclusion

Aram Group Company is proud to present our ESG report, showcasing our unwavering commit-
ment to sustainability, ethical governance, and social responsibility. Throughout this report, we
have highlighted our proactive measures and achievements across various domains, including
supplier engagement, employee welfare, community integration, customer health and safety,
board governance, human rights, ethics and compliance, and tax policy.

Our dedication to fostering a sustainable future is evident in our strategic initiatives and robust
frameworks designed to address environmental, social, and governance impacts. By prioritiz-
ing local suppliers, ensuring safe and inclusive workplaces, engaging with communities, and
maintaining transparent and ethical practices, we strive to create positive and lasting change.

As we continue our ESG journey, we remain committed to continuous improvement, transpar-
ency, and accountability. We recognize the importance of adapting to evolving challenges and
opportunities, and we are dedicated to setting new standards of excellence in responsible
corporate citizenship.

Thank you for your support and trust in Aram Group Company. Together, we will continue to
drive forward with integrity, innovation, and a shared vision for a sustainable and prosperous
future.
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ADX & GRI
Disclosures




114 | ESG Report 2024

Environment

ADX Metric

El. GHG Emissions

E2. Emissions Intensity

E3. Energy Usage

E4. Energy Intensity

E5. Energy Mix

EB6. Water Usage

E7. Environmental Operations
E8. Environmental Oversight
E9. Environmental Oversight

E10. Climate Risk Mitigation

Social
ADX Metric

"S1. CEO Pay Ratio"
S2. Gender Pay Ratio
S3. Employee Turnover

S4. Gender Diversity

S5. Temporary Worker Ratio
"S6. Non- Discrimination”

S7. Injury Rate

S8. Global Health & Safety
S9. Child & Forced Labor

S10. Human Rights

Corresponding GRI Standard

GRI 305: Emissions 2016

GRI 305: Emissions 2016

"GRI 302: Energy 2016"

"GRI 302: Energy 2016"

"GRI 302: Energy 2016"

"GRI 303: Water & Effluents 2018"
"GRI103: Management Approach 2016™
"GRIN02: General Disclosures 2016
"GRI102: General Disclosures 2016

Corresponding GRI Standard

"GR1102: General Disclosures 2016"
GRI 405: Diversity and Equal Opportunity 2016
“GRI 401: Employment 2016"

"GRI102: General Disclosures 2016
GRI 405: Diversity & Equal Opportunity 2016"

"GRI102: General Disclosures 2016"
“GRI103: Management Approach 2016™

"GRI 403: Occupational Health & Safety
2018"

"GRI103: Management Approach 2016™
"GRI102: Genera"GRI 103: Management
Approach 2016™ | Disclosures 20168"
"GRI103: Management Approach 2016"

Ref Page No.

12

12

1

1

1

13

10

6.,8,21
21-23/M-13
12

Ref Page No.

25
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Governance

ADX Metric
G1. Board Diversity

G2. Board Independence
G4. Supplier Code of Conduct

G5. Ethics & Prevention of
Corruption

G6. Data Privacy
"G7. Sustainability Reporting"

G8. Disclosure Practices

G9. External Assurance

Corresponding GRI Standard

GRI 405: Diversity & Equal Opportunity
2016

" GRI103: Management Approach 2016
is to be used in combination with the
topic specific Standards"

Ref Page No.

23

19
22

26
21
23

External Audit
report to have
this information
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